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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

X QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2008

OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-33448

JMP Group Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
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Delaware 20-1450327
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

600 Montgomery Street, Suite 1100, San Francisco, California 94111
(Address of principal executive offices)

Registrant s telephone number: (415) 835-8900

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer ~

Non-accelerated filer x (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes © No x

The number of shares of the Registrant s common stock, par value $0.001 per share, outstanding as of August 1, 2008 was 20,050,930.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

JMP Group Inc. is required to file current, annual and quarterly reports, proxy statements and other information required by the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, with the Securities and Exchange Commission. You may read and copy any document JMP Group Inc. files
with the SEC at the SEC s Public Reference Room located at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. Information on the operation of the
Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an internet website at
http://www.sec.gov, from which interested persons can electronically access JMP Group Inc. s SEC filings.

JMP Group Inc. will make available free of charge through its internet site http://www.jmpg.com, its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxy statements, Forms 3, 4 and 5 filed by or on behalf of directors, executive officers and
certain large stockholders, and any amendments to those documents filed or furnished pursuant to the Exchange Act. These filings will become
available as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC.

JMP Group Inc. also makes available, in the Investor Relations section of its website, (i) its corporate governance guidelines, (ii) its code of
business conduct and ethics, and (iii) the charters of the audit, compensation, and corporate governance and nominating committees of its board
of directors. These documents, as well as the information on the website of JMP Group Inc., are not intended to be part of this quarterly report.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. Financial Statements

JMP Group Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and deposits (includes cash on deposit with clearing broker of $255,336 at June 30,
2008 and December 31, 2007)

Receivable from clearing broker

Investment banking fees receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $46,483 and $156,004
at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007

Marketable securities owned, at fair value

Other investments

Loans receivable

Fixed assets, net

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Liabilities:

Marketable securities sold, but not yet purchased, at fair value
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Note payable

Accrued compensation

Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Minority interest

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders Equity

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 22,069,741 and 22,044,541 shares
issued at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury stock (at cost, 1,827,766 shares at June 30, 2008 and 1,418,061 shares at December 31,
2007)

Retained earnings

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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June 30, 2008
Unaudited

Successor

$ 54,494,730

10,553,231
1,915,501

6,148,540
23,742,474
45,769,639

3,618,273

1,476,505

6,656,989
5,982,141

$ 160,358,023

$ 9,479,033
4,480,850
7,330,345
7,031,036

28,321,264

15,833,210

22,070
125,575,362

(13,685,621)
4,291,738

116,203,549

$ 160,358,023

December 31, 2007

$

$

99,127,043

12,038,511
1,475,626

5,848,754
24,220,761
27,557,542

1,177,763

1,857,444

2,626,227
8,781,592

184,711,263

10,954,013
9,135,000

28,154,889
6,261,842

54,505,744

14,604,692

22,045
121,001,922

(10,884,218)
5,461,078

115,600,827

184,711,263
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Revenues

Investment banking
Brokerage

Asset management fees
Principal transactions
Interest and dividends
Other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Compensation and benefits

Income allocation and accretion
Redeemable Class A member interests
Administration

Brokerage, clearing and exchange fees
Travel and business development
Communications and technology
Occupancy

Professional fees

Depreciation

Interest and dividend expense

Other

Total expenses

Income (loss) before minority interest and

income tax expense (benefit)
Minority interest
Income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (loss)

Net income per common share:
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average common shares
outstanding:

Basic

Diluted

Net (loss) per unit-Class A common
interests:

Basic

Diluted

Weighted average units outstanding - Class

A common interests - basic and diluted
Net (loss) per unit - Class B common
interests:
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JMP Group Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Net Income (Loss)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
Three Months
Ended April 1, 2007 May 16, 2007 January 1, May 16, 2007
June 30, through through June 30, Six Months Ended 2007 through through June 30,
2008 May 15, 2007 2007 June 30, 2008 May 15, 2007 2007
Successor Predecessor Successor Successor Predecessor Successor

$ 10,832,895 $ 4,561,556  $ 7,462,048 $ 18,939,411 $ 16,054,815 § 7,462,048

8,717,226 4,355,143 4,069,896 16,859,070 12,986,710 4,069,896
1,330,847 330,429 560,217 4,072,620 1,218,467 560,217
(682,693) 609,465 (169,595) (2,062,574) 541,251 (169,595)
1,256,496 473,771 693,171 2,848,910 1,244,663 693,171
159,577 128,030 40,000 708,492 326,105 40,000
21,614,348 10,458,394 12,655,737 41,365,929 32,372,011 12,655,737
13,834,582 5,562,436 11,745,347 26,423,801 18,393,339 11,745,347
114,368,739 117,418,274
2,071,771 765,683 879,913 3,352,820 1,770,553 879,913
1,096,647 550,527 606,782 2,469,973 1,689,174 606,782
1,026,214 500,453 394,357 1,954,970 1,197,440 394,357
1,005,100 448,247 487,925 1,999,555 1,389,647 487,925
478,256 233,383 233,277 947,819 699,774 233,277
697,376 150,552 622,009 1,876,945 375,969 622,009
254,930 169,217 153,165 520,888 525,734 153,165
102,042 178,936 59,306 317,686 683,114 59,306
(3,697) 20,907 120,906 (12,450) (241,082) 120,906
20,563,221 122,949,080 15,302,987 39,852,007 143,901,936 15,302,987
1,051,127 (112,490,686) (2,647,250) 1,513,922 (111,529,925) (2,647,250)
210,981 31,910 (74,463) 154,550 167,388 (74,463)
645,676 (5,338,839) 486,102 (5,338,839)
$ 194,470 $ (112,522,596) $ 2,766,052 $ 873,270  $ (111,697,313) $ 2,766,052
$ 0.01 $ 013 $ 0.04 $ 0.13
$ 0.01 $ 012 $ 0.04 $ 0.12
20,371,347 22,025,341 20,458,622 22,025,341
20,932,467 22,191,213 20,920,966 22,191,213
$ (23.99) $ (23.84)
$ (23.99) $ (23.84)
2,390,088 2,384,881
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Basic $ (23.99) $ (23.84)
Diluted $ (23.99) $ (23.84)
Weighted average units outstanding - Class

B common interests - basic and diluted 2,300,000 2,300,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents



Edgar Filing: JMP Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten
JMP Group Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders Equity

(Unaudited)
Shareholders Equity
Common Stock Common
Treasury Additional
Stock Paid-In Retained
Shares Amount Amount Capital Earnings Total Equity
Successor:
Balance, December 31, 2007 22,044,541 $22,045 $(10,884,218) $121,001,922 $ 5,461,078 $ 115,600,827
Net income 873,270 873,270
Additional paid-in-capital stock based
compensation 25,200 25 4,573,440 4,573,465
Cash dividends paid to shareholders (2,042,610) (2,042,610)
Purchases of shares of common stock for treasury (2,801,403) (2,801,403)
Balance, June 30, 2008 22,069,741 $22,070 $(13,685,621) $125,575,362 $ 4,291,738  $ 116,203,549

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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JMP Group Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:

Provision for doubtful accounts

Change in other investments:

Fair value

Incentive fees reinvested in general partnership interests
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets

Minority interest

Stock-based compensation expense

Deferred income taxes

Net change in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in receivables

Decrease (increase) in marketable securities

Decrease (increase) in restricted cash, deposits and other assets
(Decrease) increase in marketable securities sold, but not yet purchased
Decrease in securities sold under agreements to repurchase
(Decrease) increase in accrued compensation and other liabilities
Increase in Redeemable Class A member interests

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets

Purchases of other investments
Sales of other investments

Funding of loans receivable
Repayment of loan receivable
Repayment of note receivable

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Increase (decrease) in notes payable

Proceeds from initial public offering, net of expenses

Distributions paid to Class A and Class B common interests

Cash dividends paid to shareholders

Purchases of shares of common stock for treasury

Capital contributions of minority interest members and shareholders
Dividends paid to minority interest shareholders

Net cash provided by financing activities

Table of Contents

Six Months

Ended
June 30,
2008
Successor

873,270
(12,450)

1,315,353
(1,191,600)
520,888
154,550
4,573,465
(4,030,762)

572,789

478,287

3,949,459
(1,474,980)
(9,135,000)
(20,055,350)

(23,462,081)
(139,949)
(19,635,850)
(2,762,510)
322,000

335,272

(21,881,037)

4,480,850

(2,042,610)
(2,801,403)
1,204,348

(130,380)

710,805

Six Months Ended June 30, 2007

January 1, 2007
through
May 15,

2007
Predecessor

$(111,697,313)
(241,079)
(430,177)
(226,953)
525,734

167,388
816,249

1,421,098
(3,953,001)
(1,271,797)

1,561,160

(15,189.,481)
98,696,930
(29,821,242)

(60,416)

(700,000)

251,696

(508,720)

14,500,000

(6,679,874)

200,000

8,020,126

May 16, 2007
through
June 30, 2007
Successor

$ 2,766,052
20,906
754
(209,597)
153,165
(74,463)
4,387,993
(5,338,839)
(4,706,294)
1,640,437
(2,691,313)
2,389,472

3,287,982

1,626,255

(75,866)
(12,000,000)

(3,000,000)
625,000

(14,450,866)

(14,500,000)
73,125,679

(25,280)

58,600,399

10
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Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for interest

Cash paid during the period for taxes

Non-cash financing activities:

Issuance of Class A common interests

Issuance of JMPRT common stock

(44,632,313)
99,127,043

$ 54,494,730

$ 165,711

$ 3,248,000

$
$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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(22,309,836)
52,328,804

30,018,968

1,033,937

401,172
20,800

45,775,788
30,080,301

$ 75,856,089

32,653

“* &
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JMP Group Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2008
(Unaudited)
1. Organization and Description of Business

JMP Group Inc., together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the Company or Successor ), is an independent investment banking and asset
management firm headquartered in San Francisco. JMP Group Inc. completed its initial public offering on May 16, 2007, and also completed a
corporate reorganization (the Reorganization ), which is described in greater detail in the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File

No. 333-140689) (the Registration Statement ) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC ) in connection with the initial public
offering. The Company conducts its brokerage business through its wholly-owned subsidiary, JMP Securities LLC ( JMP Securities ), its asset
management business through its wholly-owned subsidiary, JMP Asset Management LLC ( JMPAM ) and principal investments through its
wholly-owned subsidiary JMP Capital LLC ( JMP Capital ). JMP Securities is a U.S. registered broker-dealer under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ( FINRA ). JMP Securities operates as an introducing
broker and does not hold funds or securities for, or owe any money or securities to, customers and does not carry accounts for customers. All
customer transactions are cleared through another broker-dealer on a fully disclosed basis. IMPAM is a registered investment advisor under the
Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended, and provides investment management services for sophisticated investors in investment
partnerships managed by JMPAM.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements and related notes are unaudited and have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10 Q and Article 10 of Regulation S X. These
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company s consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the
year ended December 31, 2007 included in its annual report on Form 10-K. These consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments
(consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) that are, in the opinion of management, necessary for the fair statement of the results for the
interim periods. The results of operations for any interim period are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for a full year.

These financial statements and accompanying notes present the consolidated financial condition of the Successor as of June 30, 2008 and
December 31, 2007. Consolidated results of operations and cash flows are presented for the Successor for the periods from May 16, 2007 to
June 30, 2008 (post-Reorganization) and for the Predecessor for the periods January 1, 2007 through May 15, 2007 (pre-Reorganization). The
Reorganization in connection with the initial public offering resulted in a combination of the Predecessor (JMP Group LLC) and JMP Holdings
Inc. (now JMP Group Inc.), whose financial statements had not been combined with those of the Predecessor prior to May 16, 2007 for reporting
purposes. Therefore, the Successor s consolidated financial statements as of May 16, 2007 include the accounts of both JMP Group LLC and
JMP Group Inc. The consolidated accounts of the Successor and the Predecessor both include the wholly-owned subsidiaries, JMP Securities
and JMPAM, and the partially-owned subsidiaries, JMP Realty Trust ( JMPRT ), Harvest Consumer Partners ( HCP ), Harvest Technology
Partners ( HTP ) and Opportunity Acquisition Corp., a special purpose acquisition corporation, or SPAC, formed for the purpose of acquiring one
or more businesses through a merger, capital stock exchange, stock purchase, asset acquisition, or other similar business combination. The
Company is the sponsor of the SPAC. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Minority interest relates to the interest of third parties in JMPRT and in the two asset management funds HCP and HTP, as well as in
Opportunity Acquisition Corp.

JMPRT is a real estate investment trust that was formed in June 2006. As of June 30, 2008, the Company owned 49.5% of JIMPRT and certain
employees owned 20.1%. JMPRT is managed by JMPAM. Because of its current ownership and management position, the Company
consolidates JMPRT and records minority interest.

JMPAM is the general partner of HTP and HCP, each of which commenced operations during 2006. As of June 30, 2008, the Company and its
affiliates, officers, and immediate family members provided 93.4% and 82.5%, respectively, of the invested capital in HTP and HCP. Due to this
ownership and resulting control by the Company and related parties, the Company consolidates the two funds in the Company s financial
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statements and records minority interest. HTP and HCP account for their investments at fair value, which is consistent with the Company s
accounting policies for Marketable securities owned, at fair value and Marketable securities sold, but not yet purchased, at fair value. The base
management fees and incentive fees earned by HTP and HCP are eliminated in consolidation net of minority interest.

In addition to HTP and HCP, JMPAM currently manages several other asset management limited partnerships and is a general partner of each.
The partnership agreements for these asset management funds provide for the right of the limited partners to remove the general partners by a
simple majority vote of the unaffiliated limited partners. This right satisfies all of the criteria enumerated in paragraph 7.b. of Emerging Issues
Task Force Issue No. 04-5 ( EITF 04-5 ), Determining whether a General Partner, or the General Partners as a Group, Controls a Limited
Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights. As a result, consolidation of these asset management funds is not
required.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect both the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Table of Contents 13
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Revenue Recognition
Investment banking revenues

Investment banking revenues consist of underwriting revenues, strategic advisory revenues and private placement fees, and are recorded when
the underlying transaction is completed under the terms of the relevant agreement. Underwriting revenues arise from securities offerings in
which the Company acts as an underwriter and include management fees, selling concessions and underwriting fees, net of related syndicate
expenses. Management fees and selling concessions are recorded on the trade date, which is typically the day of pricing an offering (or the
following day) and underwriting fees, net of related syndicate expenses, at the time the underwriting is completed and the related income is
reasonably determinable. For these transactions, management estimates the Company s share of the transaction-related expenses incurred by the
syndicate, and recognizes revenues net of such expense. On final settlement, typically 90 days from the trade date of the transaction, these
amounts are adjusted to reflect the actual transaction-related expenses and the resulting underwriting fee. Expenses associated with such
transactions are deferred until the related revenue is recognized or the engagement is otherwise concluded. If management determines that a
transaction is likely not to be completed, deferred expenses related to that transaction are expensed at that time. Strategic advisory revenues
primarily include success fees on closed merger and acquisition transactions, as well as retainer fees, earned in connection with advising on both
buyers and sellers transactions. Fees are also earned for related advisory work and other services such as providing fairness opinions and
valuation analyses. Strategic advisory revenues are recorded when the transactions or the services (or, if applicable, separate components
thereof) to be performed are substantially complete, the fees are determinable and collection is reasonably assured. Private placement fees are
related to non-underwritten transactions such as private placements of equity securities, private investments in public equity ( PIPE ), Rule 144A
private offerings and trust preferred securities offerings and are recorded on the closing date of the transaction. Unreimbursed expenses
associated with strategic advisory and private placement transactions, net of client reimbursements, are recorded in the Consolidated Statements
of Net Income within various expense captions other than compensation expense.

Brokerage revenues

Brokerage revenues consist of (i) commissions resulting from equity securities transactions executed as agent or principal and are recorded on a
trade date basis, (ii) related net trading gains and losses from market making activities and from the commitment of capital to facilitate customer
orders and (iii) fees paid for equity research. The Company currently generates revenues from research activities through three types of
arrangements. First, through what is commonly known as a soft dollar practice, a portion of a client s commissions may be compensation for the
value of access to our research. Those commissions are recognized on a trade date basis, as the Company has no further obligation. Second, a
client may issue a cash payment directly to the Company for access to research. Third, the Company has entered into certain
commission-sharing or tri-party arrangements in which institutional clients execute trades with a limited number of brokers and instruct those
brokers to allocate a portion of the commission to the Company or to issue a cash payment to the Company. In these commission-sharing or
tri-party arrangements, the amount of the fee is determined by the client on a case-by-case basis and agreed to by the Company. An invoice is
then sent to the payor. For the second and third type of arrangements, revenue is recognized and an invoice is sent once an arrangement exists,
access to research has been provided, a specific amount is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. None of these
arrangements obligate clients to a fixed amount of fees for research, either through trading commissions or direct or indirect cash payments, nor
do they obligate the Company to provide a fixed quantity of research or execute a fixed number of trades. Furthermore, the Company is not
obligated under any arrangement to make commission payments to third parties on behalf of clients.

Principal transactions revenues

Principal transactions revenues include realized and unrealized net gains and losses resulting from our principal investments in equity and other
securities for the Company s account and in equity-linked warrants received from certain investment banking assignments, as well as limited
partner investments in private funds managed by third parties. Principal transactions revenue also includes earnings (or losses) attributable to
investment partnership interests held by our asset management subsidiary, JIMPAM, which are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting.

The Company s principal transactions revenue for these categories for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as
follows:

Three Months  Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 Six Months Six Months Ended June 30, 2007

Ended June 30, April 1, May 16, 2007 Ended January 1, May 16, 2007
2008 2007 through June 30, June 30, 2007 through June 30,
through May 15, 2007 2008 through May 15, 2007
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2007 2007
Successor Predecessor Successor Successor Predecessor Successor
Equity and other securities $ 426,098 $ 341,334 $ (295,564) $(2,831,046) $ (135,301) $ (295,564)
Warrants and other investments 191,842 (13,614) (40,266) 153,584 11,904 (40,266)
Investment partnerships (1,300,633) 281,745 166,235 614,888 664,648 166,235

Total principal transactions revenues $  (682,693) $ 609,465 $ (169,595) $(2,062,574) $ 541,251 $ (169,595)
Asset management fees

Asset management fees consist of base management fees and incentive fees. The Company recognizes base management fees on a monthly basis
over the period in which the investment services are performed. Base management fees earned by the Company are generally based on the fair
value of assets under management and the fee schedule for each fund and account. Base management fees are calculated at the investor level
using their quarter-beginning capital balance adjusted for any contributions or withdrawals. The Company also earns incentive fees that are
based upon the performance of investment funds and accounts. Such fees are either a specified percentage of the total investment return of a
fund or account or a percentage of the excess of an investment return over a specified highwater mark or hurdle rate over a defined performance
period. For most funds, the highwater mark is calculated using the greatest value of a partner s capital account as of the end of any performance
period, adjusted for contributions and withdrawals. Incentive fees are recognized as revenue at the end of the specified performance period. The
performance period used to determine the incentive fee is quarterly for the hedge funds, JIMPRT and NYMT, and annually for the funds of hedge
funds managed by JIMPAM. Most of the incentive fees are currently reinvested in the investment funds in which we hold a general partner
investment. The incentive fees are not subject to any contingent repayments to investors or any other clawback arrangements.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers highly liquid investments with original maturities or remaining maturities upon purchase of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash and Deposits

Restricted cash consists of proceeds from short sales deposited with brokers that cannot be removed unless the securities are delivered. Deposits
consist of cash on deposit for operating leases as well as cash on deposit with JMP Securities clearing broker. At each of June 30, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, the Company had $255,336 of cash on deposit with JMP Securities ~clearing broker.

Receivable from Clearing Broker

The Company clears customer transactions through another broker-dealer on a fully disclosed basis. At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007,
the receivable from clearing broker consisted solely of commissions related to securities transactions.

Investment Banking Fees Receivable

Investment banking fees receivable include receivables relating to the Company s investment banking or advisory engagements. The Company
records an allowance for doubtful accounts on these receivables on a specific identification basis.

Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under repurchase agreements are accounted for as collateralized financing transactions. The liabilities that result from these
agreements are recorded in the consolidated statements of financial condition at the amounts at which the securities were sold. As of June 30,
2008 there was no securities sold under repurchase agreements. As of December 31, 2007, the Company pledged owned quasi-government
agency securities as collateral. Interest expense is recorded on an accrual basis and is recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Net Income.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ( SFAS ) No. 157, Fair Value Measurements as of January 1, 2008. This
standard establishes a consistent framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ( GAAP ) and
expands disclosures with respect to fair value measurements. SFAS 157 applies to all financial instruments that are being measured and reported
on a fair value basis. This includes those items currently reported in marketable securities owned, at fair value, other investments and marketable
securities sold, not yet purchased, at fair value on the consolidated statements of financial condition. SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. See Note 4 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements for a complete discussion of SFAS 157.

Substantially all of the Company s financial instruments are recorded at fair value or amounts that approximate fair value. Marketable securities
owned, Other investments, including warrant positions and investments in partnerships in which JMPAM is the general partner, and Marketable
securities sold, but not yet purchased, are stated at fair value, with related changes in unrealized appreciation or depreciation reflected in the line
item Principal transactions in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Net Income.

Under SFAS 157, fair value of the Company s financial instruments is generally obtained from quoted market prices, broker or dealer price
quotations, or alternative pricing methodologies that the Company believes offer reasonable levels of price transparency. Management believes
that the fair value of the receivable from clearing broker and investment banking fees receivable on the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition approximate their carrying value, because such instruments are short-term in nature, bear interest at current market rates, or are
subject to frequent repricing.

To the extent that certain financial instruments trade infrequently or are non-marketable securities and, therefore, do not have readily
determinable fair values, the Company estimates the fair value of these instruments using various pricing models and the information available
to the Company that it deems most relevant. Among the factors considered by the Company in determining the fair value of financial
instruments are discounted anticipated cash flows, the cost, terms and liquidity of the instrument, the financial condition, operating results and
credit ratings of the issuer or underlying company, the quoted market price of publicly traded securities with similar duration and yield, the
Black-Scholes Options Valuation methodology adjusted for active market and other considerations on a case-by-case basis and other factors
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generally pertinent to the valuation of financial instruments.

Marketable securities owned and securities sold, but not yet purchased, consist of U.S. listed and OTC equity securities and quasi-government
agency securities. Other investments consist principally of investments in private investment funds managed by the Company or its affiliates and
an investment in a private investment fund managed by a third party. Such investments held by non-broker-dealer entities are accounted for
under the equity method based on the Company s share of the earnings (or losses) of the investee. The financial position and operating results of
the private investment funds are generally determined on an estimated fair value basis as set forth in the AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide:
Investment Companies. Generally, securities are valued (i) at their last published sale price if they are listed on an established exchange or (ii) if
last sales prices are not published, at the highest closing bid price (for securities held long ) and the lowest closing asked price (for short
positions) as recorded by the composite tape system or such principal exchange, as the case may be. Where the general partner determines that
market prices or quotations do not fairly represent the value of a security in the investment fund s portfolio (for example, if a security is a
restricted security of a class that is publicly traded) the general partner may assign a different value. The general partner will determine the
estimated fair value of any assets that are not publicly traded.

Also included in other investments are convertible preferred stock and common stock of New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. ( NYMT ), and warrants
on public and private common stock. The investment in NYMT convertible preferred stock is based on a fair value estimate using the
Black-Scholes credit adjusted valuation model on Bloomberg. The warrants on public and private common stock are generally received as a

result of investment banking transactions and are valued at estimated fair value as determined by management. Warrants owned are valued at the
date of issuance and marked-to-market as unrealized gains and losses until realized. Estimated fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes
Options Valuation methodology adjusted for active market and other considerations on a case-by-case basis.

10
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The aforementioned fair value methods represent the Company s best estimate of exit price as defined by SFAS 157.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Including an Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 115 ( SFAS 159 ) as of January 1, 2008. SFAS 159 provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value. It requires entities to display the fair value of those assets and liabilities for which the company has chosen to
use fair value on the face of the balance sheet. The election to use the fair value option is available at specified election dates, such as when an
entity first recognizes a financial asset or financial liability or upon entering into a firm commitment. Subsequent changes in fair value must be
recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Net Income. Additionally, SFAS 159 allows for a one-time election for existing positions upon
adoption, with the transition adjustment recorded to beginning retained earnings.

We elected to apply the fair value option to the following financial assets:

Investment in NYMT convertible preferred stock; and

Investment in NYMT common stock
There was no adjustment recorded to retained earnings related to the adoption of SFAS 159.

Subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 159, we have elected to apply the fair value option to new positions. In certain cases, we may continue to
apply the equity method of accounting to those investments which are strategic in nature or are closely related to our principal business
activities, where we have a significant degree of involvement in the cash flows or operations of the investee.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable include loans held-for-investment and are carried at their unpaid principal balance, net of any reserves for credit losses. The
Company records a reserve against loans receivable on a specific identification basis.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets represent furniture and fixtures, computer and office equipment, certain software costs and leasehold improvements, which are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the respective assets, ranging from three to five years.

Leasehold improvements are capitalized and amortized over the shorter of the respective lease terms or the estimated useful lives of the
improvements.

The Company capitalizes certain costs of computer software developed or obtained for internal use and amortizes the amount over the estimated
useful life of the software, generally not exceeding three years.

Income Taxes

The Successor, JMP Group Inc., accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, ( SFAS 109 ). SFAS
109 requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon the temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax
bases of the assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce the deferred tax assets when it is more likely

than not that a portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Predecessor, JIMP Group LLC, was a limited liability company

and was treated as a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes. Therefore, the Predecessor was not subject to federal and state income
taxes, and accordingly, did not provide for the federal and state income taxes in the financial statements, but it was liable for state and local
unincorporated business tax or franchise tax.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, income taxes are computed based on actual results.

Stock-Based Compensation
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Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment ( SFAS 123R ), using the modified prospective
method. Under that method of adoption, the provisions of SFAS 123R are generally only applied to share-based awards granted subsequent to
adoption. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. SFAS 123R requires measurement of compensation cost for stock-based awards classified as equity at their fair value on the date
of grant and the recognition of compensation expense over the service period for awards expected to vest. Such grants are recognized as expense
over the service period, net of estimated forfeitures.

Stock-based compensation includes restricted stock units and stock options granted under the Company s 2007 Equity Incentive Plan, stock
options granted under the Company s 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, as well as changes in Redeemable Class A member interests, which were
membership interests issued to the Predecessor s employee members and recorded as a liability prior to May 16, 2007. On May 16, 2007, in
connection with the Reorganization, the Redeemable Class A member interests were exchanged for shares of the Company s common stock and
reclassified as equity.

In accordance with generally accepted valuation practices for stock-based awards issued as compensation, the Company uses the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model to calculate the fair value of option awards, although such models were originally developed to estimate the fair value of
freely tradable, fully transferable options without vesting restrictions, which significantly differ from the Company s stock options and restricted
stock units. The Black-Scholes model requires subjective assumptions regarding variables such as future stock price volatility, dividend yield
and expected time to exercise, which greatly affect the calculated values.

11
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Reclassification

Certain balances from prior years have been reclassified in order to conform to the current year presentation. The reclassifications had no impact
on the Company s financial position, net income or cash flows.

3. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations ( SFAS 141(R) ). In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS 141(R), which requires the acquiring
entity in a business combination to recognize the full fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction (whether a full or
partial acquisition); establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed;
requires expensing of most transaction and restructuring costs; and requires the acquirer to disclose to investors and other users all of the
information needed to evaluate and understand the nature and financial effect of the business combination. SFAS 141(R) applies to all
transactions or other events in which the Company obtains control of one or more businesses, including those sometimes referred to as true
mergers or mergers of equals and combinations achieved without the transfer of consideration, for example, by contract alone or through the
lapse of minority veto rights. SFAS 141(R) applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating SFAS 141(R) and
has not yet determined the potential impact on the results of operations or financial condition.

SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements - an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51

( SFAS 160 ). In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS 160, which requires reporting entities to present noncontrolling (minority) interests as
equity (as opposed to as a liability or mezzanine equity) and provides guidance on the accounting for transactions between an entity and
noncontrolling interests. SFAS 160 applies to all fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15,
2008, except for the presentation and disclosure requirements which will be applied retrospectively for all periods presented. The Company is
currently evaluating SFAS 160 and has not yet determined the potential impact on the results of operations or financial condition.

SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities ( SFAS 161 ). In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161,
which requires specific disclosures regarding the location and amounts of derivative instruments in the Company s financial statements; how
derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for; and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect the

Company s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective for the first interim or annual period beginning after
November 15, 2008. Early application is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adoption on its consolidated financial
statements.

4. Financial Instruments

As defined in SFAS 157, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the Company uses various methods including market, income
and cost approaches. Based on these approaches, the Company often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing
the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be
readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable firm inputs. The Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs used in the valuation techniques,
the Company is required to provide the following information according to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the quality
and reliability of the information used to determine fair values. Financial instrument assets and liabilities carried at fair value have been
classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1 Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.
Level 3  Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

Level 1 primarily consists of financial instruments whose value is based on quoted market prices such as U.S. listed and OTC equity securities,
or broker or dealer price quotations, as well as quasi-government agency securities, all of which are carried at fair value.

Level 2 includes those financial instruments that are valued using models or other valuation methodologies. These models are primarily
industry-standard models that consider various assumptions, including discounted anticipated cash flows, the cost, terms and liquidity of the
instrument, the financial condition, operating results and credit ratings of the issuer or underlying company, the quoted market price of publicly

Table of Contents 20



Edgar Filing: JMP Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

traded securities with similar duration and yield, time value, yield curve, prepayment speeds, default rates, loss severity, as well as other
measurements. Substantially all of these assumptions are observable in the marketplace, can be derived from observable data or are supported by
observable levels at which transactions are executed in the marketplace. Included in this category is the general partner investment in hedge
funds, where the underlying hedge funds are mainly invested in publicly traded stocks whose value is based on quoted market prices.

Level 3 is comprised of financial instruments whose fair value is estimated based on internally developed models or methodologies utilizing
significant inputs that are generally less readily observable from objective sources. A description of the valuation techniques utilized for the fair
value of the financial instruments in this category is as follows:

General partner investment in funds of funds and limited partner investment in private equity fund: determined by net asset value
provided by third party general partners;

Investment in NYMT convertible preferred stock: determined by the Company using the Black-Scholes credit adjusted valuation
model on Bloomberg; and

Warrants: determined by the Company using the Black-Scholes Options Valuation model.
In determining the appropriate levels, the Company performed a detailed analysis of the assets and liabilities that are subject to SFAS 157. At
each reporting period, all assets and liabilities for which the fair value measurement is based on significant unobservable inputs are classified as
Level 3.

12
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The following tables provide fair value information related to the Company s financial assets and liabilities:

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2008

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial instruments owned, at fair value:
Marketable Securities Owned:
Equity securities $15,214,884 $ $ $15,214,884
Quasi-government agency securities 8,527,590 8,527,590
Total marketable securities owned $23,742,474 $ $ $ 23,742,474
Other Investments:
General partner investment in hedge funds $ $20,738,734 $ $ 20,738,734
General partner investment in funds of funds 4,543,753 4,543,753
Total general partner investment in funds 20,738,734 4,543,753 25,282,487
Limited partner investment in private equity fund 2,462,756 2,462,756
Investment in NYMT convertible preferred stock (1) 14,065,201 14,065,201
Investment in NYMT common stock (1) 3,655,431 3,655,431
Warrants 303,764 303,764
Total other investments $ 3,655,431 $20,738,734 $21,375474 $45,769,639

(1) Carried in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition at fair value in accordance with SFAS 159.

Liabilities at Fair Value as of June 30, 2008

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial instruments sold, but not yet purchased, at fair value:
Marketable securities sold, but not yet purchased

$ 9,479,033 $ $ $ 9,479,033

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for the assets at fair value using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008:

Changes in unrealized
gains and (losses)
included in
earnings

Total gains
and (losses)
Balance as of Purchases/(sales), (realized and Transfers in/(out) Balance as of

March 31, 2008 net unrealized) of Level 3 June 30, 2008
General partner investment in funds of $
funds $ 4,498,151 $ $ 45,602 $ 4,543,753
Limited partner investment in private
equity fund 2,296,747 94,900 71,109 2,462,756
Investment in NYMT convertible
preferred stock 14,177,062 (111,861) 14,065,201
Warrants 227,172 76,592 303,764
Total Level 3 $ 21,199,132 $ 94900 $ 81442 $ $21,375,474

Table of Contents

related to assets
still

held at reporting
date

$ 45,602
71,109

(111,861)
76,592

$ 81,442

22



Table of Contents

Edgar Filing: JMP Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

13

23



Edgar Filing: JMP Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten

Changes in unrealized
gains and (losses)
included in

earnings
Total gains related to assets
Balance as of and (losses) still
December 31, Purchases/(sales), (realized and Transfers in/(out) Balance as of held at reporting
2007 net unrealized) of Level 3 June 30, 2008 date
General partner investment in funds of
funds $ 4,460,971 $ $ 82,782 $ $ 4,543,753 % 82,782
Limited partner investment in private
equity fund 2,282,582 155,000 25,174 2,462,756 25,174
Investment in NYMT convertible
preferred stock 15,000,000 (934,799) 14,065,201 (934,799)
Warrants 300,503 3,261 303,764 3,261
Total Level 3 $ 7,044,056 $ 15,155,000 $ (823,582) $ $21,375474  $ (823,582)

Total gains and losses represent the total gains and/or losses (realized and unrealized) recorded for the Level 3 assets and are reported in
principal transactions in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Net Income. Additionally, the change in the unrealized gains and losses
are partially offset by realized gains and losses during the period.

Purchases/sales represent the net amount of Level 3 assets that were either purchased or sold during the period. The amounts were recorded at
fair value at the date of the transaction.

Net transfers in/out of Level 3 represent existing financial assets that previously categorized at a higher level. Transfers into or out of Level 3
result from changes in the observability of fair value inputs used in determining fair values for different types of financial assets.

The amount of unrealized gains and losses included in earnings attributable to the change in unrealized gains and losses relating to Level 3 assets
still held at the end of the period were reported in Principal transactions in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Net Income. The
change in unrealized gains and losses are partially offset by realized gains and losses during the period.

5. Loans Receivable

Loans receivable includes a participation interest in a loan made by JMPRT to a client. The loan is collateralized by real estate related assets, and
bears interest at the rate of 20% per annum, payable monthly in arrears. The principal of the loan was due and payable on December 1, 2007, but
was extended until September 2008 for an additional fee at the borrower s option and in connection with a partial repayment. At June 30, 2008,
the loan balance was $855,763.

The Company also entered into $7.0 million in non-revolving credit notes on which $2.8 million in aggregate was advanced in the second
quarter of 2008. The loans bear interest at rates from 12% to 20% per annum with maturity dates from one to three years.

The Company records a reserve against loans receivable on a specific identification basis. As of June 30, 2008 there was no reserve balance.
6. Fixed Assets

At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, fixed assets consisted of the following:

June 30,
2008 December 31, 2007
Successor
Furniture and fixtures $ 1,332,032 $ 1,314,278
Computer and office equipment 3,113,513 2,994,005
Leasehold improvements 2,320,338 2,320,338
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Software 482,618 479,931
Less: accumulated depreciation (5,771,996) (5,251,108)
Total fixed assets, net $ 1,476,505 $ 1,857,444

Depreciation expense for the three months ended June 30, 2008 was $254,930, $169,217 for the period of April 1, 2007 through May 15, 2007,
and $153,165 for the period of May 16, 2007 through June 30, 2007. Depreciation expense for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was
$520,888, $525,734 for the period of January 1, 2007 through May 15, 2007, and $153,165 for the period of May 16, 2007 through June 30,
2007.
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7. Note Payable

On August 3, 2006, the Predecessor entered into a revolving note with City National Bank for up to $30.0 million, replacing a prior $10.0
million annual revolving note. Each draw bears interest at the prime rate less 1.25% annually or at LIBOR plus 1.25% annually, at the election
of the Company. The Company paid a closing fee of $75,000 and pays an annual unused commitment fee of 0.25% payable quarterly in arrears.
There are no periodic principal payments required for this facility until maturity.

14
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On March 27, 2008, the Company amended the agreement to extend the expiration date from June 30, 2008 to December 31, 2009, with the
option at expiry to extend up to $10.0 million of the revolving note for an additional three years to December 31, 2012. This facility is
collateralized by a pledge of the Company s assets, including its interests in each of JMP Securities and JMPAM. At June 30, 2008, the balance
outstanding was $4.5 million.

8. Shareholders Equity
Common Stock

Shares of JMP Holdings Inc. common stock were originally sold in a private offering in August 2004 to enable certain non-employee investors
to invest through a corporate entity in the membership interests of JMP Group LLC. JMP Holdings in turn owned, as a member of JMP Group
LLC, Class B common interests on a one-for-one basis for each share of common stock. Effective May 16, 2007, in connection with the
Company s initial public offering, the members of JIMP Group LLC exchanged the outstanding membership interests of JMP Group LLC for
shares of common stock of JMP Holdings, and JMP Holdings changed its name to JMP Group Inc. In the initial public offering, the Company
sold and issued 7,199,864 shares of its common stock, raising $73.1 million of proceeds, net of the Company s direct offering costs.

The Company intends to pay regular quarterly cash dividends on all outstanding shares of common stock. The Company does not plan to pay
dividends on unvested shares of restricted stock. On May 8, 2008, the Company s board of directors declared a cash dividend of $0.05 per share
of common stock for the first quarter of 2008 which was paid on June 13, 2008 to common shareholders of record on May 30, 2008.

Stock Repurchase Program

A 1.5 million share repurchase program authorized in August and November 2007 was fully executed as of January 18, 2008. On March 10,
2008, the Company s board of directors authorized the buyback of an additional 2.0 million shares during the subsequent eighteen months,
depending on market conditions. During the quarter ended June 30, 2008, the Company repurchased 283,700 shares of the Company s common
stock at an average price of $6.76 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $1,918,268.

The timing and amount of any future repurchases will be determined by JMP management based on its evaluation of market conditions, the
relative attractiveness of other capital deployment activities, regulatory considerations and other factors. Any open market stock repurchase
activities will be conducted in compliance with the safe harbor provisions of Rule 10b-18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
or in privately negotiated transactions. Repurchases of common stock may also be made under an effective Rule 10b5-1 plan which permits
common stock to be repurchased when the Company may otherwise be prohibited from doing so under insider trading laws. This repurchase
program may be suspended or discontinued at any time.

9. Stock-Based Compensation

On March 26, 2007, the board of directors adopted the JMP Group Inc. 2007 Equity Incentive Plan ( JMP Group 2007 Plan ), which was
approved by the stockholders on April 12, 2007. JMP Group Inc. authorized the issuance of 4,000,000 shares of its common stock under this
Plan. This amount is increased by any shares JMP Group Inc. purchases on the open market, or through any share repurchase or share exchange
program, as well as any shares that may be returned to the JMP Group 2007 Plan or the JMP Group LLC 2004 Equity Incentive Plan ( JMP
Group 2004 Plan ) as a result of forfeiture, termination or expiration of awards; not to exceed a maximum aggregate number of shares of
2,960,000 shares under the JMP Group 2004 Plan. The Company will issue shares upon exercises or vesting from authorized but unissued shares
or from treasury stock.

Stock Options

The following table summarizes the stock option activity for the six months ended June 30, 2008:

Six Months Ended June 30, 2008

Shares Subject Weighted Average
to Option Exercise Price
Balance, beginning of year 2,384,890 $ 11.47
Granted $
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In accordance with the requirements of SFAS 123R and FIN 28, Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or
Award Plans, the Successor and the Predecessor recognize stock-based compensation expense for stock options over the graded vesting period
of the options using the accelerated attribution method, resulting in compensation expense as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
April 1, January 1,
2007 May 16, 2007 Six Months 2007 May 16, 2007
Three Months Ended through May 15, through June 30, Ended June 30, through May 15, through June 30,
June 30, 2008 2007 2007 2008 2007 2007
Successor Predecessor Successor Successor Predecessor Successor
$ 9,855 $ 177,837 $ 3,219,512 $ 16,767 $ 740,120 $ 3,219,512

As of June 30, 2008, there was $54,281 of unrecognized compensation expense related to stock options expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 1.79 years.

Restricted Stock Units

The Company grants restricted stock units ( RSUs ) to employees and non-employee directors at no cost to the recipient. An RSU entitles the
recipient to receive a share of common stock after the applicable restrictions lapse. These awards are subject to vesting schedules and continued
employment with the Company. Some of these awards are also subject to post vesting lockup restrictions. In the event of a change in control or
corporate transactions, or if the vesting of all or certain of the RSUs are otherwise accelerated, the RSUs will vest immediately prior to the
effective date of such an event.

In determining the 2007 year-end bonus compensation levels, the Company incorporated the equity award program into such considerations. As
a result, on January 16, 2008, the Company awarded 1,558,246 RSUs under the JMP Group 2007 Equity Award Plan to all eligible employees.
The total fair value of these awards on grant date was $9,128,218. The fair value per unit was based on the market value of the underlying stock
on grant date, discounted for post vesting restrictions and future dividends not expected to be received by unvested RSUs over the vesting
period. The valuation methodology included an initial assumed expected dividend yield of 3.0%, and a risk-free discount rate of 2.57%.
Discounts for post-vesting restrictions were calculated using the Finnerty Model, which was developed to estimate the impact of transfer
restrictions on stock prices based on empirical studies.

These RSUs were awarded in three separate tranches. The first tranche of 773,210 units will vest 50% on each of the first and second
anniversary of the grant date and is subject to a lockup period until January 15, 2012. The second tranche of 170,104 units will vest 50% on the
second anniversary, and 25% on each of the third and fourth anniversary of the grant date and is subject to a lockup period until January 15,
2012. The third tranche of 614,930 units will vest 100% on fourth anniversary of the grant date and is subject to a lockup period until

January 15, 2014.

The following table summarizes the RSU activity for the six months ended June 30, 2008:

Six Months Ended June 30, 2008

Weighted Average
Restricted Grant Date Fair
Stock Units Value
Balance, beginning of year 1,943,336 $ 10.30
Granted 1,597,659 $ 5.88
Vested (25,200) $ 8.70
Forfeited (131,584) $ 8.97
Balance, end of period 3,384,211 $ 8.28

The Company recognizes compensation expense over a graded vesting period using the accelerated attribution method. For the three and six
month periods ended June 30, 2008, the Company recorded non-cash compensation expense of $1,204,126 and $2,238,668, respectively, in
connection with the award of RSUs prior to the initial public offering date. In addition, for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2008,
the Company recorded non-cash compensation expense of $1,279,963 and $2,318,024, respectively, for RSUs granted after the initial public
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offering.

For the three and six month period ended June 30, 2007, the Predecessor recorded non-cash compensation expense of $76,129 and the Successor
recorded non-cash compensation expense of $1,168,481, respectively, in conjunction with the award of restricted stock units. The fair value of
RSUs was based on the initial public offering price of $11.00 and discounted for future dividends expected not to be received by unvested RSUs
over the vesting period.

As of June 30, 2008, there was $19,862,178 of unrecognized compensation expense related to RSUs expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 2.61 years.
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10. Net Income per Share of Common Stock and Net Income per Unit Attributable to Class A and Class B Common Interests

The Company calculates its net income per share, and the Predecessor calculated its net income per unit attributable to Class A and Class B
common interests, in accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share.

Basic net income per share for the Company is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for the reporting period. Diluted net income per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of outstanding shares
to reflect the potential dilutive impact as if all potentially dilutive stock options or RSUs were exercised or converted.

Basic net income per unit for the Predecessor is calculated by dividing net income attributable to Class A and Class B common interests by the
weighted average number of units of Class A and Class B common interests outstanding for the reporting period. Diluted net income per unit is
computed similarly, except that it reflects the potential dilutive impact that would occur if potentially dilutive securities were exercised or
converted into membership interests. To determine an average market price for applying the treasury stock method, the Predecessor estimated
the fair market value of the Predecessor s Class B common interests based on trades of Class B common interests between third parties and
earnings multiples of publicly traded comparables.

The computations of basic and diluted net income per share and basic and diluted net income per unit for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2008 and 2007 are shown in the table below:

Three Months Ended June 30, 2007

Three
Months May 16, 2007
Ended April 1, 2007 through
June 30, 2008 through May 15, 2007 June 30, 2007
Successor Predecessor Successor
Class A Class B
Common Common

Numerator:
Net income (loss) $ 194470 $(57,341,971) $(55,180,625) $ 2,766,052
Denominator:
Basic weighted average Class A and Class B common units outstanding 2,390,088 2,300,000
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 20,371,347 22,025,341
Effect of potential dilutive securities:
Options to purchase Class B common interests
Options to purchase common shares 52,084
Restricted stock units 561,120 113,788
Diluted weighted average Class A and Class B common units outstanding 2,390,088 2,300,000
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 20,932,467 22,191,213
Net (loss) income per unit attributable to Class A and Class B common
interests
Basic $ (2399) $ (23.99)
Diluted $ (23.99) $ (23.99)
Net income per share
Basic $ 0.01 $ 0.13
Diluted $ 0.01 $ 0.12

Stock options to purchase 2,243,548 and 1,435,000 shares of common stock for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and for the period May 16
through June 30, 2007, respectively, as well as 1,458,333 Class B common interests for the period April 1 through May 15, 2007, were
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anti-dilutive and, therefore, were not included in the computation of diluted common units or diluted common shares outstanding. Restricted
stock units for 15,824 shares of common stock for the three months ended June 30, 2008 were anti-dilutive and, therefore, were not included in
the computation of diluted common shares outstanding.
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
January 1, 2007

Six Months May 16, 2007
Ended through through
June 30, 2008 May 15, 2007 June 30, 2007
Successor Predecessor Successor
Class A Class B
Common Common

Numerator:
Net income (loss) $ 873,270 $(56,860,528) $(54,836,785) $ 2,766,052
Denominator:
Basic weighted average Class A and Class B common units outstanding 2,384,881 2,300,000
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 20,458,622 22,025,341
Effect of potential dilutive securities:
Options to purchase Class B common interests
Options to purchase common shares 52,084
Restricted stock units 462,344 113,788
Diluted weighted average Class A and Class B common units outstanding 2,384,881 2,300,000
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 20,920,966 22,191,213
Net (loss) income per unit attributable to Class A and Class B common
interests
Basic $ (23.84) $ (23.84)
Diluted $ (23.84) $ (23.84)
Net income per share
Basic $ 0.04 $ 0.13
Diluted $ 0.04 $ 0.12

Stock options to purchase 2,306,507 and 1,435,000 shares of common stock for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and for the period May 16
through June 30, 2007, respectively, as well as 1,474,677 Class B common interests for the period April 1 through May 15, 2007, were
anti-dilutive and, therefore, were not included in the computation of diluted common units or diluted common shares outstanding. Restricted
stock units for 7,912 shares of common stock for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were anti-dilutive and, therefore, were not included in the
computation of diluted common shares outstanding.

11. Employee Benefits

All salaried employees of the Company are eligible to participate in the JMP Group 401(k) Plan after three months of employment. Participants
may contribute up to the limits set by the United States Internal Revenue Service. There were no contributions by the Company during the six
months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007.

12. Income Taxes

Prior to the Reorganization, all income and losses of JIMP Group LLC, the Predecessor, were reportable by the individual members of JMP
Group LLC in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code of the United States, and as required under generally accepted accounting principles.
The U.S. federal and state income taxes payable by the members based upon their share of JMP Group LLC s net income have not been reflected
in the accompanying financial statements for periods prior to the Reorganization. JMP Holdings Inc., being a C-corporation from its inception in
August 2004, was subject to U.S. federal and state income taxes on its taxable income, and in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for
Income Taxes ( SFAS 109 ), accounted for income taxes in its separate financial statements. SFAS 109 requires the recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities based upon the temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of the Company s assets and liabilities.
Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce the deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that a portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized.
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As a result of the Reorganization, JMP Group Inc. (formerly JMP Holdings Inc.) succeeded to the business of the Predecessor. The Company is
subject to U.S. federal and state income taxes on all taxable income earned subsequent to May 15, 2007 by JMP Group LLC and its subsidiaries.
As a result of the Reorganization, upon the change of tax status of JMP Group LLC from a partnership to a wholly-owned disregarded entity of
the Company, the Company recognized a one-time tax benefit of $4,084,993 in connection with the establishment of net deferred tax items of
$10,169,354. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company recorded a total tax expense of $645,676 and $486,102 ,
respectively, which included a tax expense (benefit) adjustment of $633 and $(317,168) , respectively, to the $4,084,993 one-time tax benefit
recorded in 2007.
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The components of the Successor s income tax expense (benefit) for the three month and six months ended June 30, 2008 and for the period
May 16, 2007 to June 30, 2007 are as follows:

May 16,
Six Months 2007
Three Months ended through
ended June 30, June 30,
June 30, 2008 2008 2007
Successor Successor Successor
Federal $ 2,089,250 $ 3,614,815 $
State 530,675 902,051
Total current income tax expense 2,619,925 4,516,866
Federal (1,723,533) (3,512,981) (4,578,288)
State (250,716) (517,783) (760,551)
Total deferred benefit (1,974,249) (4,030,764) (5,338,839)
Total expense (benefit) from income taxes $ 645,676 $ 486,102  $(5,338,839)

A reconciliation of the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate to the Successor s effective tax rate for the three month and six month period ended
June 30, 2008 and May 16, 2007 to June 30, 2007 are as follows:

Three Months May 16, 2007
ended Six Months ended through
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
Successor Successor Successor

Tax at federal statutory tax rate 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%
State income tax, net of federal tax benefit 5.75% 5.75% 5.75%
Adjustment for permanent items 16.30% 6.15% -1.02%
Rate before one-time events 57.05% 46.90% 39.73%
Deferred tax asset written off related to options and RSUs 19.74% 12.20%
Deferred tax recognized upon JMP Group LLC s tax status change 0.08% -23.34% 167.79%
Effective tax rate 76.87% 35.76% 207.52%

The Company has analyzed the filing positions in its federal and state tax returns for all open tax years 2004 through 2006. The Company does
not anticipate any tax adjustments that will result in a material adverse effect on the Company s financial condition, results of operations, or cash
flow. Therefore, the Company did not record a cumulative effect adjustment related to the adoption of FIN 48, and no liabilities for uncertain
income tax positions have been recorded pursuant to FIN 48.

The Company s policy for recording interest and penalties associated with the tax audits or unrecognized tax benefits, if any, is to record such
items as a component of income before taxes. Penalties, if incurred, would be recorded in administration and interest paid or received would be
recorded in interest and dividend expense in the Consolidated Statements of Net Income.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases office space in California, Illinois, Georgia, Massachusetts and New York under various operating leases. Rental expense
for the three months ended June 30, 2008 was $478,256, for the period of April 1, 2007 through May 15, 2007 was $233,383, and for the period
of May 16, 2007 through June 30, 2007 was $233,277.

Table of Contents 35



Edgar Filing: JMP Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

Rental expense for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was $947,819, for the period of January 1, 2007 through May 15, 2007 was $699,774,
and for the period of May 16, 2007 through June 30, 2007 was $233,277.

The California and New York leases included a period of free rent at the start of the lease for seven months and three months, respectively. Rent
expense is recognized over the entire lease uniformly net of the free rent savings. The aggregate minimum future commitments of these leases
are:

July 1, 2008 through December 31, 2008 $ 970,730
2009 2,253,008
2010 2,250,368
2011 1,625,711
2012
Thereafter

$7,099,817

In connection with its underwriting activities, JMP Securities enters into firm commitments for the purchase of securities in return for a fee.
These commitments require JMP Securities to purchase securities at a specified price. Securities underwriting exposes JMP Securities to market
and credit risk, primarily in the event that, for any reason, securities purchased by JMP Securities cannot be distributed at anticipated price
levels. At June 30, 2008, JMP Securities had no open underwriting commitments.
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The marketable securities owned and the restricted cash as well as the cash held by the clearing broker, may be used to maintain margin
requirements. At June 30, 2008 and 2007, the Company had $255,336 of cash on deposit with JMP Securities clearing broker. Furthermore, the
marketable securities owned may be hypothecated or borrowed by the clearing broker.

The Company had, as of June 30, 2008, a capital commitment of $260,900 related to its investment in a private investment fund.
14. Regulatory Requirements

JMP Securities is subject to the SEC s Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1), which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital, as
defined, and requires that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital, both as defined, shall not exceed 15 to 1. JMP Securities had net
capital of $38,236,191 and $51,329,438, which were $37,519,499 and $50,583,243 in excess of the required net capital of $716,692 and
$746,195 at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. JMP Securities ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital was 0.28 to 1 and
0.22 to 1 at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

Since all customer transactions are cleared through another broker-dealer on a fully disclosed basis, JMP Securities is not required to maintain a
separate bank account for the exclusive benefit of customers in accordance with Rule 15¢3-3 under the Exchange Act.

15. Related Party Transactions

The Company earns base management fees and incentive fees from serving as investment advisor for various entities, including corporations,
partnerships and offshore investment companies. The Company may also own an investment in these companies. Base management fees earned
from these activities were $1,366,568 and $683,032 for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $2,400,289 and
$1,324,259 for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Also, JIMPAM earned incentive fees of $15,469 and $209,883 from
these entities for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $1,755,602 and $472,410 from these entities for the six
months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

16. Guarantees

JMP Securities has agreed to indemnify its clearing broker for losses that the clearing broker may sustain from the accounts of customers
introduced by JMP Securities. Should a customer not fulfill its obligation on a transaction, JMP Securities may be required to buy or sell
securities at prevailing market prices in the future on behalf of its customer. JMP Securities obligation under the indemnification has no
maximum amount. All unsettled trades at June 30, 2008 had settled with no resulting material liability to the Company. For the three and six
months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the Company had no material loss due to counterparty failure, and has no obligations outstanding under
the indemnification arrangement as of June 30, 2008.

The Company is engaged in various investment banking and brokerage activities whose counterparties primarily include broker-dealers, banks
and other financial institutions. In the event counterparties do not fulfill their obligations, the Company may be exposed to risk. The risk of
default depends on the creditworthiness of the counterparty or issuer of the instrument. It is the Company s policy to review, as necessary, the
credit standing of each counterparty with which it conducts business.

17. Litigation

Due to the nature of its business, the Company is subject to various threatened or filed legal actions. For example, because we act as an
underwriter or a financial advisor in the ordinary course of our business, we have in the past been, currently are and may in the future be subject
to class action claims that seek substantial damages.

In addition, defending employment and other claims against us could require the expenditure of substantial resources. Such litigation is
inherently uncertain and the ultimate resolution of such litigation could be determined by factors outside of our control. Management, after
consultation with legal counsel, believes that the currently known actions or threats will not result in any material adverse effect on the
Company s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

18. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk, Credit Risk or Market Risk

The majority of the Company s transactions, and consequently the concentration of its credit exposure, is with its clearing broker. The clearing
broker is also a significant source of short-term financing for the Company, which is collateralized by cash and securities owned by the
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Company and held by the clearing broker. The Company s securities owned may be pledged by the clearing broker. The receivable from the
clearing broker represents amounts receivable in connection with the trading of proprietary positions.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk from other brokers, dealers and other financial institutions with which it transacts business. In the
event that counterparties do not fulfill their obligations, the Company may be exposed to credit risk.

The Company s trading activities include providing securities brokerage services to institutional clients. To facilitate these customer transactions,
the Company purchases proprietary securities positions ( long positions ) in equity securities. The Company also enters into transactions to sell
securities not yet purchased ( short positions ), which are recorded as liabilities on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. The
Company is exposed to market risk on these long and short securities positions as a result of decreases in market value of long positions and
increases in market value of short positions. Short positions create a liability to purchase the security in the market at prevailing prices. Such
transactions result in off-balance sheet market risk as the Company s ultimate obligation to satisfy the sale of securities sold, but not yet
purchased may exceed the amount recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. To mitigate the risk of losses, these

securities positions are marked to market daily and are monitored by management to assure compliance with limits established by the Company.
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19. Business Segments

The Company s business results are categorized into the following two segments: Broker-Dealer and Asset Management. The Broker-Dealer
segment includes a broad range of services, such as underwriting and acting as a placement agent for public and private capital raising
transactions and financial advisory services in M&A, restructuring and other strategic transactions. The Broker-Dealer segment also includes
institutional brokerage services and equity research services to our institutional investor clients. The Asset Management segment includes the
management of a broad range of pooled investment vehicles, including the Company s hedge funds, funds of funds and JMPRT as well as the
Company s principal investments in public and private securities.

The accounting policies of the segments are consistent with those described in the Significant Accounting Policies in Note 2.

Revenue generating activities between segments are eliminated from the segment results for reporting purposes. These activities include fees
paid by the Broker-Dealer segment to the Asset Management segment for the management of its investment portfolio.

The Company s segment information for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 was prepared using the following methodology:

Revenues and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining income.

Revenues and expenses not directly associated with a specific segment are allocated based on the most relevant measures applicable,
including revenues, headcount and other factors.

Each segment s operating expenses include: a) compensation and benefits expenses that are incurred directly in support of the
segments and b) other operating expenses, which include expenses for premises and occupancy, professional fees, travel and
entertainment, communications and information services, equipment and indirect support costs (including compensation and other
operating expenses related thereto) for administrative services.

Corporate operating expenses include income allocation and accretion Redeemable Class A member interests and interest expense

payable on Redeemable Class A member interests. These expenses are not allocated to the segments, because Redeemable Class A

member interests are capital to the Company as a whole and the income allocation is based on the Company s consolidated results.
The Company evaluates segment results based on revenue and segment operating income before minority interest and taxes.

Segment Operating Results

Management believes that the following information provides a reasonable representation of each segment s contribution to revenues, income
and assets:

Three Months Ended June 30, 2007 Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
Three Months April 1, 2007 Six Months  January 1, 2007
Ended through May 16, 2007 Ended through May 16, 2007
June 30, May 15, through June 30, May 15, through
2008 2007 June 30, 2007 2008 2007 June 30, 2007
Successor Predecessor Successor Successor Predecessor Successor
Broker-Dealer
Revenues $ 20,737,147 $ 9,696,521 $ 11,926,538 $ 35,791,767 $ 30,114,149 $ 11,926,538
Operating expenses 19,416,214 7,690,734 14,249,307 35,179,470 24,013,904 14,249,307
Segment operating income $ 1,320,933 $ 2,005,787 $ (2,322,769) $ 612,297 $ 6,100,245 $ (2,322,769)
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$ 87,769,136
$ 877,201
1,147,007

$  (269.806) $

$ 72,588,887

$ 21,614,348
20,563,221

$ 1,051,127

$ 160,358,023

N/A

$ 761,873
764,087

(2,214)
N/A

$ 114,494,259

$ 10,458,394
122,949,080

$ (112,490,686)

N/A

$
$

$

108,632,362 $ 87,769,136

729,199 $ 5,574,162
1,053,680 4,672,537

(324,481) $ 901,625
48,989,665 $ 72,588,887
$

12,655,737 $ 41,365,929
15,302,987 39,852,007

(2,647,250) $ 1,513,922

157,622,027 $ 160,358,023

N/A

$ 2,257,862
1,925,177

$ 332,685
N/A

$ 117,962,855
$ 32,372,011
143,901,936

$ 108,632,362

$ 729,199
1,053,680

$  (324,481)
$ 48,989,665

$

$ 12,655,737
15,302,987

$(111,529,925) $ (2,647,250)

N/A

$ 157,622,027

On July 14, 2008, the Company made a $4.2 million investment in a private commercial mortgage originator in the form of a note and warrants.
To fund the investment, the Company drew down an additional $4.2 million on its revolving note with City National Bank, which brought its
borrowings under this revolving note to $8.7 million.

On August 6, 2008, the Company s board of directors declared a cash dividend of $0.05 per share of common stock for the third quarter of 2008
to be paid on September 12, 2008 to common shareholders of record on August 29, 2008.
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ITEM 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A) should be read together with
the unaudited consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this report. For additional context with which to
understand our financial condition and results of operations, refer to the MD&A for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 contained in our
annual report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 13, 2008, as well as the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes contained
therein.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This MD&A and other sections of this report contain forward looking statements. We make forward-looking statements, as defined by the safe

harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and in some cases, you can identify these statements by

forward-looking words such as if, shall, may, might, will likely result, should, expect, plan, anticipate, believe, estimate,
objective, predict, potential or continue, the negative of these terms and other comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements, whi

are based on various underlying assumptions and expectations and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other unknown factors, may include

projections of our future financial performance based on our growth strategies and anticipated trends in our business. These statements are only

predictions based on our current expectations and projections about future events that we believe to be reasonable. There are or may be

important factors that could cause our actual results, level of activity, performance or achievements to differ materially from the historical or

future results, level of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. These factors include,

but are not limited to, those discussed under the caption Risk Factors in our annual report on Form 10-K. In preparing this MD&A, we presume

that readers have access to and have read the MD&A in our Annual report on Form 10-K, pursuant to Instruction 2 to paragraph (b) of Item 303

of Regulation S-K. We undertake no duty to update any of these forward-looking statements after the date of filing of this report to

conform such forward-looking statements to actual results or revised expectations, except as otherwise required by law.

Overview

We are a full-service investment banking and asset management firm headquartered in San Francisco. We have a diversified business model
with a focus on small and middle-market companies and provide:

investment banking, including corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions and other strategic advisory services, to corporate clients;

sales and trading, and related brokerage services to institutional investors;

proprietary equity research in our six target industries; and

asset management products and services to institutional investors, high net-worth individuals and for our own account.
Corporate Reorganization

Prior to May 16, 2007, the Company had conducted its business through a multi-member Delaware limited liability company, JMP Group LLC,
or the Predecessor, pursuant to its Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement dated as of August 18, 2004,
as amended, or the Operating Agreement. One of JMP Group LLC s members, JMP Holdings Inc., was established in August 2004 to enable
investors to invest through a corporate entity in the membership interests of JMP Group LLC. Shares of common stock of JMP Holdings were
issued in a private offering in August 2004. JMP Holdings only significant asset until May 16, 2007 was its investment in JMP Group LLC,
comprised of the member interests of JMP Group LLC purchased with the net proceeds received from issuance of JMP Holdings common stock.

In connection with its initial public offering, JMP Holdings changed its name to JMP Group Inc., and effective May 16, 2007, members of JIMP
Group LLC exchanged the outstanding membership interests of JMP Group LLC for shares of common stock of JMP Group Inc. As a result of
the exchange, JMP Group LLC became JMP Group Inc. s wholly-owned subsidiary and JMP Group Inc., or the Successor, completed its initial
public offering on May 16, 2007. This corporate reorganization, or Reorganization, is described in greater detail in the Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-140689) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the initial public offering.
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Predecessor and Successor

We have presented our historical financial results for the Predecessor and the Successor in the financial statements for the periods before and
after the Reorganization on May 16, 2007. Despite the separate presentation, there were no material changes to the actual operations or customer
relationships of our business as a result of the exchange of the membership interests of the Predecessor for shares of common stock of the
Successor and the initial public offering of the Successor.

As the core operations of the Company have not changed as a result of the Reorganization, when evaluating our results of operations and
financial performance, our management views the six months ended June 30, 2007 as a single measurement period, rather than the two separate
periods that are required to be reported under GAAP. We believe that comparisons between the Predecessor s results for the period from
January 1, 2007 to May 15, 2007 or the Successor s results for the period from May 16, 2007 to June 30, 2007, may not provide users of our
financial statements with all the information they may need to fully understand our operating and cash flow performance.

Consequently, to enhance the analysis of our operating results and cash flows, in our MD&A we have presented the operating results and cash
flows of the Predecessor and Successor on a combined basis for the six months ended June 30, 2007. This combined presentation for the six
months ended June 30, 2007 represents a non-GAAP mathematical addition of the pre-reorganization results of operations and statements of
cash flow of the Predecessor for the period from January 1, 2007 to May 15, 2007 and the results of operations and statements of cash flow of
the Successor for the period from May 16, 2007 to June 30, 2007. The Successor conducted no material operational activities from the date of
formation of JMP Holdings Inc. until the combination with JMP Group LLC on May 16, 2007. We believe that the combined presentation
provides additional information investors can use to conduct a meaningful comparison of operating results and cash flows between periods. A
reconciliation showing the mathematical combination of our operating results for such periods is included below under the headings Historical
Results of Operations and Liquidity and Capital Resources.
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Components of Revenues

We derive revenues primarily from fees earned from our investment banking business, net commissions on our trading activities in our sales and
trading business, and asset management fees in our asset management business. We also generate revenues from principal transactions, interest,
dividends, and other income.

Investment Banking

We earn investment banking revenues from underwriting securities offerings, arranging private placements and providing advisory services in
mergers and acquisitions and other strategic advisory assignments.

Underwriting Revenues

We earn underwriting revenues from securities offerings in which we act as an underwriter, such as initial public offerings and follow-on equity
offerings. Underwriting revenues include management fees, underwriting fees and selling concessions. We record underwriting revenues, net of
related syndicate expenses, at the time the underwriting is completed. In syndicated underwritten transactions, management estimates our share
of transaction-related expenses incurred by the syndicate, and we recognize revenues net of such expense. On final settlement by the lead
manager, typically 90 days from the trade date of the transaction, we adjust these amounts to reflect the actual transaction-related expenses and
our resulting underwriting fee. We receive a higher proportion of total fees in underwritten transactions in which we act as a lead manager.

Strategic Advisory Revenues

Our strategic advisory revenues primarily include success fees on closed merger and acquisition transactions, as well as retainer fees, earned in
connection with advising both buyers and sellers transactions. We also earn fees for related advisory work and other services such as providing
fairness opinions and valuation analyses. We record strategic advisory revenues when the transactions or the services (or, if applicable, separate
components thereof) to be performed are substantially complete, the fees are determinable and collection is reasonably assured.

Private Placement Revenues

We earn agency placement fees in non-underwritten transactions such as private placements of equity securities, private investments in public
equity ( PIPE ), Rule 144A private offerings and trust preferred securities offerings. We record private placement revenues on the closing date of
these transactions.

Since our investment banking revenues are generally recognized at the time of completion of each transaction or the services to be performed,
these revenues typically vary between periods and may be considerably affected by the timing of the closing of significant transactions.

Brokerage Revenues

Our brokerage revenues include commissions paid by customers from brokerage transactions in exchange-listed and over-the-counter, or OTC,
equity securities. Commissions are recognized on a trade date basis. Brokerage revenues also include net trading gains and losses that result
from market making activities and from our commitment of capital to facilitate customer transactions. Our brokerage revenues may vary
between periods, in part depending on commission rates, trading volumes and our ability to continue to deliver research and other value-added
services to our clients. The ability to execute trades electronically, through the Internet and through other alternative trading systems has
increased pressure on trading commissions and spreads. We expect this trend toward alternative trading systems and pricing pressures in our
brokerage business to continue. We are, to some extent, compensated through brokerage commissions for the value of research and other value
added services we deliver to our clients. These soft dollar practices have been the subject of discussion among regulators, the investment
banking community and our sales and trading clients. In particular, commission sharing arrangements have been adopted by some large
institutional investors. In these arrangements, these institutional investors concentrate their trading with fewer execution brokers and pay a fixed
amount for execution with an additional amount set aside for payments to other firms for research or other brokerage services. Accordingly, we
may experience reduced (or eliminated) trading volume with such investors but may be compensated for our research and sales efforts through
allocations of the designated amounts. Depending on the extent to which we adopt this practice and depending on our ability to reach
arrangements on terms acceptable to us, this trend would likely impair the revenues and profitability of our commission business by negatively
affecting both volumes and trading commissions in our commission business.

Asset Management Fees
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Asset management fees include base management fees and incentive fees earned from managing investment partnerships sponsored by us and
investment accounts owned by clients. Base management fees earned by us are generally based on the fair value of assets under management
and the fee schedule for each fund and account. We also earn incentive fees that are based upon the performance of investment funds and
accounts. Such fees are based on a percentage of the excess of an investment return over a specified highwater mark or hurdle rate over a defined
performance period.

Our asset management revenues are subject to fluctuations due to a variety of factors that are unpredictable, including the overall condition of
the economy and the securities markets as a whole and our core sectors. These conditions can have a material effect on the inflows and outflows
of assets under management, and the performance of our asset management funds. For example, a significant portion of the performance-based
or incentive revenues that we recognize are based on the value of securities held in the funds we manage. The value of these securities includes
unrealized gains or losses that may change from one period to another.
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The following table presents certain information with respect to the investment funds managed by JMP Asset Management ( JMPAM ):

Net Asset Value at Company s Share of Net Asset Value at
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Successor Successor
Funds Managed by JMPAM:
Hedge Funds:
Harvest Opportunity Partners I $ 63,930,758 $ 60,689,192 $ 7,314,080 $ 9,108,059
Harvest Small Cap Partners 158,621,589 63,070,695 13,424,647 11,405,427
Harvest Consumer Partners * 5,364,503 4,656,976 2,367,161 2,349,621
Harvest Technology Partners * 6,370,877 4,917,626 2,511,388 1,807,051
Funds of Funds:
JMP Masters Fund 124,348,620 111,314,314 3,465,895 3,367,116
JMP Emerging Masters Fund 11,670,018 12,639,186 1,077,859 1,093,855
REITs:
JMP Realty Trust * 17,780,609 18,205,867 8,808,282 9,018,087
New York Mortgage Trust ** 48,413,824 N/A N/A
Total funds managed by JIMPAM $ 436,500,798 $275,493,856 $ 38,969,312 $ 38,149,216

* The Company s share of net asset value in HTP, HCP and JMP Realty Trust ( JMPRT ) is consolidated in the Company s Statements of
Financial Condition, net of minority interest.

*%*  The portion of the net asset value of New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. ( NYMT ) that is subject to the management fee calculation. In
connection with its investment in NYMT, in January 2008, the Company entered into an advisory agreement between JMPAM and

NYMT.
Three Months Ended June 30, 2008 Six Months Ended June 30, 2008
Company s Share Company s Share
of Change JMPAM JMPAM of Change in JMPAM JMPAM
in Fair Management Incentive Fair Management Incentive
Value Fee Fee Value Fee Fee
Successor Successor Successor Successor Successor Successor
Hedge Funds:
Harvest Opportunity Partners I $(724269) $ 192,906 $ 2 $ (530,374) $ 367,535 $ 38,777
Harvest Small Cap Partners (742,407) 597,480 (5,883) 864,022 953,904 1,653,432
Harvest Consumer Partners * (60,724) 7,356 15,534 12,890 2,010
Harvest Technology Partners * 181,166 6,911 21,350 182,922 13,836 21,413
Funds of Funds:
JMP Masters Fund 64,554 286,177 98,778 570,885 30,823
JMP Emerging Masters Fund (18,952) 26,357 (15,996) 53,505 9,147
REITs:
JMP Realty Trust * 40,339 65,485 (113,070) 134,871
New York Mortgage Trust 593,570 183,896 (1,137,019) 293,063
Totals $(666,723) $ 1,366,568 $ 15469 $ (635,203) $ 2,400,489 $ 1,755,602
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* Revenues earned from HTP, HCP and JMPRT are consolidated and then eliminated in consolidation in the Company s Statements of Net
Income, net of minority interest.
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2007
Company s Share of

Change in Fair Value JMPAM Management Fee JMPAM Incentive Fee
April 1, April 1, April 1,
2007 May 16, 2007 2007 May 16, 2007 2007 May 16, 2007
through May 15, through June 30, through May 15, through June 36brough May 15through June 30,
2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
Predecessor Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor Successor
Hedge Funds:
Harvest Opportunity Partners II $ 45,294 $ (74,382) $ 157,647 $ 156,569 $ $ 177
Harvest Value Income Plus ** 67,824 (40,545) 16,166 15,717 5,825
Harvest Small Cap Partners 149,548 310,272 33,716 42,766 203,595
Harvest Consumer Partners * 5,438 (32,499) 2,521 2,520 21
Harvest Technology Partners * (4,421) (15,250) 1,629 1,629
Funds of Funds:
JMP Masters Fund 33,941 8,940 98,034 109,118
JMP Emerging Masters Fund 14,298 15,727 265
REIT:
JMP Realty Trust * 36,304 (17,514) 7,515 7,463
Totals $333,928 $ 139,022 $ 331,526 $ 351,509 $21 $ 209,862
Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
Company s Share of
Change in Fair Value JMPAM Management Fee JMPAM Incentive Fee
January 1, January 1, January 1,
2007 May 16, 2007 2007 May 16, 2007 2007 May 16, 2007
through May 15, through June 30, through May 15, through June 30, through May 15, through June 30,
2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
Predecessor Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor Successor
Hedge Funds:
Harvest Opportunity Partners II $ 46,774 $ (74,382) $ 466,787 $ 156,569 $ $ 177
Harvest Value Income Plus ** 38,676 (40,545) 56,980 15,717 5,825
Harvest Small Cap Partners 481,461 310,272 90,988 42,766 226,956 203,595
Harvest Consumer Partners * 28,146 (32,499) 7,458 2,520 4,522
Harvest Technology Partners * 34,628 (15,250) 4,828 1,629 8,835
Funds of Funds:
JMP Masters Fund 50,842 8,940 286,346 109,118 20,223
JMP Emerging Masters Fund 36,854 15,727 2,012 265
REIT:
JMP Realty Trust * 14,373 (17,514) 22,512 7,463
Totals $ 694,900 $ 139,022 $972,753 $ 351,509 $262,548 $ 209,862

* Revenues earned from HTP, HCP and JMPRT are consolidated and then eliminated in consolidation in the Company s Statements of Net
Income, net of minority interest.

*%*  On December 31, 2007, HVIP was liquidated and its assets distributed to its partners.

As of June 30, 2008, the contractual base management fees earned from each of these investment funds ranged between 1% and 2% of assets
under management. The contractual incentive fees were generally (i) 20%, subject to highwater marks, for the hedge funds; (ii) 5% to 20%,
subject to highwater marks or a performance hurdle rate, for the funds of funds; and (iii) 25%, subject to a performance hurdle rate, for JMPRT
and NYMT.
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Principal Transactions

Principal transactions revenues includes realized and unrealized net gains and losses resulting from our principal investments, which includes
investments in equity and other securities for our own account and as the general partner of funds managed by us, warrants we may receive from
certain investment banking assignments, as well as limited partner investments in private funds managed by third parties. In addition, we invest a
portion of our capital in a portfolio of equity securities managed by JMPAM and in side-by-side investments in the funds managed by us. In
certain cases, we also co-invest alongside our institutional clients in private transactions resulting from our investment banking business.

Interest, Dividends and Other Income

Interest, dividends and other income includes interest and dividend income generated by our cash and investments. Other income also includes
fee sharing arrangements with, and fees earned to raise capital for third-party investment partnerships, or funds.

Components of Expenses

We classify our expenses as compensation and benefits, income allocation and accretion - Redeemable Class A member interests, administration
expense, brokerage, clearing and exchange fees, interest and dividend expense and other expenses. A significant portion of our expense base is
variable, including compensation and benefits, brokerage and clearance, communication and data processing, and travel and entertainment
expenses.
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Compensation and Benefits

Compensation and benefits is the largest component of our expenses and includes employees base pay, performance bonuses, sales
commissions, related payroll taxes, medical and benefits expenses, as well as expenses for contractors, temporary employees and equity-based
compensation. Our employees receive a substantial portion of their compensation in the form of individual performance-based bonuses. As is the
widespread practice in our industry, we pay bonuses on an annual basis, which for senior professionals typically make up a large portion of their
total compensation. Compensation is accrued based on a ratio of total compensation and benefits to total revenues, however if certain unrealized
losses do not reverse by year-end, we may exclude them from the compensation ratio calculation. We accrue for the estimated amount of these
bonus payments ratably over the applicable service period. Bonus payments may have a greater impact on our cash position and liquidity in the
periods in which they are paid than would otherwise be reflected in our Consolidated Statements of Net Income. We expect that our
compensation and benefits expense, excluding equity-based awards made prior to and in connection with our initial public offering, will be
approximately 60% of revenues each year, although we may change this rate at any time. This expected compensation ratio is based upon our
historic revenue mix which has been heavily weighted towards our brokerage and investment banking revenue from JMP Securities. To the
extent that we are successful in rapidly growing our asset management fee revenue from JMP Asset Management, the composite ratio may
eventually trend above the 60% level, since JMP Asset Management compensation structure may be at or above that of JMP Securities.
However, non-compensation expenses for asset management revenues are generally lower than those for brokerage and investment banking
revenues, which could yield an improved operating margin over time.

Income Allocation and Accretion -Redeemable Class A Member Interests

Redeemable Class A member interests were issued to our former employee members and such interests were entitled to share in our income.
Each holder of the Redeemable Class A member interest was a party to our Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company
Agreement, as amended, which provided that an employee member could have elected to redeem his or her Redeemable Class A member
interests without our consent in connection with such person s resignation from us. Because of this repurchase feature, the Redeemable Class A
member interests were classified as a liability and measured at each balance sheet date based on the redemption amounts for the Redeemable
Class A member interests. The redemption amount for a former employee member was the amount we would have been required to pay to that
former employee member upon resignation to redeem all of his or her Redeemable Class A member interests, and was equal to the capital
account of such former employee member as maintained by us.

Redeemable Class A member interests were accounted for as stock-based compensation and classified as a liability. As a result, the share of our
income allocated to Redeemable Class A member interests, based on the membership percentage owned, and any additional changes in the
redemption amount of Redeemable Class A member interests was recorded as Income allocation and accretion - Redeemable Class A member
interests in our Consolidated Statements of Net Income. When we completed our Reorganization on May 16, 2007, our Redeemable Class A
member interests were exchanged into shares of our common stock.

Administration

Administration expense primarily includes the cost of hosted conferences, non-capitalized systems and software expenditures, insurance,
business tax (non-income), office supplies, recruiting and regulatory fees.

Brokerage, Clearing and Exchange Fees

Brokerage, clearing and exchange fees include the cost of floor and electronic brokerage and execution, securities clearance, and exchange fees.
We currently clear our securities transactions through Ridge Clearing. Changes in brokerage, clearing and exchange fees fluctuate largely in line
with the volume of sales and trading activity.

Interest and Dividend Expense

Interest and dividend expense consisted primarily of interest paid on capital contributed by our Predecessor s employee members, who received
interest payments at an annual rate equal to the Prime rate plus 100 basis points until the Reorganization. To a lesser extent it results from
short-term borrowings and dividend paying short positions in our principal investment portfolio. When we completed our Reorganization on
May 16, 2007, our Redeemable Class A member interests were exchanged into shares of our common stock and thus we no longer make interest
payments to the former holders of the Redeemable Class A member interests.

Other Expenses
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Other operating expenses primarily include travel and business development, market data, occupancy, legal and accounting professional fees and
depreciation.

Minority Interest

Minority interest relates to the interest of third parties in JMPRT and in two of our asset management funds, Harvest Consumer Partners, or
HCP, and Harvest Technology Partners, or HTP, as well as in Opportunity Acquisition Corp. JMPRT is a real estate investment trust that was
formed in June 2006. JMPRT is managed by JMPAM. Because of the current ownership and external management position, we consolidate
JMPRT and record a minority interest. JMPAM is also the general partner of Harvest Consumer Partners and Harvest Technology Partners. Due
to our ownership and resulting control by JMPAM and related parties, management believes that limited partners currently do not have
substantive rights to remove the general partner, and, therefore, these two funds are consolidated in the financial statements and minority interest
is recorded. Opportunity Acquisition Corp., also a partially owned subsidiary consolidated on our books, is a special purpose acquisition
corporation or SPAC, of which JMP Group Inc. is the sponsor.
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Historical Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our historical results of operations for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 and is not
necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future period.

For purposes of the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007 discussed herein, we have aggregated the Predecessor period from
January 1, 2007 through May 15, 2007 and the Successor period from May 16, 2007 through June 30, 2007, without further adjustment, for
purposes of comparison with the same periods in 2008. The supplemental aggregate disclosures and discussions are not in accordance with, or
an alternative for, generally accepted accounting principles, and are provided solely for the purpose of providing additional supplemental

information.

(in thousands)

Revenues

Investment banking

Brokerage

Asset management fees

Principal transactions

Interest, dividends and other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Compensation and benefits

Income allocation and accretion Redeemable
Class A member interests

Administration

Brokerage, clearing and exchange fees

Interest and dividend expense

Other

Total expenses

Income (loss) before minority interest and income
tax expense (benefit)

Minority interest

Income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (loss)

(in thousands)
Revenues
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Three Months ended June 30, 2007
Three

April 1,
Months 2007 May 16, 2007

Ended June 30, through May 15, through June 30, Combined
2008 2007 2007 Predecessor/

Successor Predecessor Successor Successor

$ 10,833 $ 4,562 $ 7,462 $ 12,024
8,717 4,355 4,070 8,425

1,331 330 560 890

(683) 609 (170) 439

1,416 602 734 1,336
21,614 10,458 12,656 23,114
13,835 5,562 11,745 17,307
114,369 114,369

2,072 766 880 1,646

1,097 551 607 1,158

102 179 59 238

3,457 1,522 2,012 3,534
20,563 122,949 15,303 138,252
1,051 (112,491) (2,647) (115,138)
211 32 (74) (42)
646 (5,339) (5,339)
$ 194 $(112,523) % 2,766 $ (109,757)

Six Months ended June 30, 2007
January 1,
Six Months 2007 May 16, 2007 .

Ended June 30, through May 15, through June 30, Combined
2008 2007 2007 Predecessor/

Successor Predecessor Successor Successor

Change from

2007 to 2008
$ %
(1,191) 9.9%

292 3.5%

441 49.4%
(1,122)  -255.4%
80 6.0%
(1,500) -6.5%
(3.472)  -20.1%
(114,369)  -100.0%
426 25.9%

©61) -5.3%
(136)  -57.2%
(77) 2.2%
(117,689)  -85.1%

116,189 N/A

253 N/A
5,985 N/A
109,951 N/A

Change from
2007 to 2008
$ %
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Investment banking

Brokerage

Asset management fees

Principal transactions

Interest, dividends and other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Compensation and benefits
Income allocation and accretion
Class A member interests
Administration

Brokerage, clearing and exchange fees
Interest and dividend expense

Other

Redeemable

Total expenses

Income (loss) before minority interest and income
tax expense (benefit)

Minority interest

Income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (loss)

Table of Contents

$

18,939

16,859
4,073

(2,063)
3,558

41,366
26,424
3,353
2,470

318
7,287

39,852

1,514
155
486

873

$ 16,055 $
12,987
1,218
541
1,571

32,372
18,393
117,418
1,771
1,689

683
3,948

143,902

(111,530)
167

$(111,697) $

27

7,462
4,070
560
(170)
734

12,656
11,745
880
607

59
2,012

15,303
(2,647)
(74)

(5,339)

2,766

$ 23517
17,057
1,778

371

2,305

45,028
30,138

117,418
2,651
2,296

742
5,960

159,205

(114,177)
93
(5,339)

$ (108,931)

$  (4,578)
(198)

2,295
(2,434)
1,253

(3,662)
(3,714)

(117,418)
702
174
(424)
1,327

(119,353)

115,691
62
5,825

109,804

-19.5%
-1.2%
129.0%
-655.9%
54.4%

-8.1%
-12.3%
-100.0%
26.5%
7.6%

-57.2%
22.3%

-75.0%

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2008, Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2007
Overview

Total revenues decreased $1.5 million, or 6.5%, from $23.1 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to $21.6 million for the quarter ended
June 30, 2008. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in investment banking revenue of $1.2 million and principal transactions revenue of
$1.1 million, partially offset by an increase in asset management fee revenue of $0.4 million, brokerage revenue of $0.3 million and interest,
dividends and other income of $0.1 million.

Total expenses decreased by $117.7 million, or 85.1%, from $138.3 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to $20.6 million for the quarter
ended June 30, 2008, primarily because we discontinued recognizing income allocated to the Redeemable Class A member interests after the
Reorganization, which resulted in a decrease in income allocation and accretion/(dilution) expense of $114.4 million and due to a decrease in
compensation and benefits of $3.5 million.

Net income increased $110.0 million from a net loss of $109.8 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to net income of $0.2 million for the
quarter ended June 30, 2008, primarily as a result of the aforementioned decrease in expenses.

Revenues
Investment Banking

Investment banking revenues decreased $1.2 million, or 9.9%, from $12.0 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to $10.8 million for the
same period in 2008, and decreased as a percentage of total revenues from 52.0% to 50.1%, respectively. The decrease in revenues reflects a
lower level of activity in our public equity underwriting and strategic advisory businesses, partially offset by increased activity in our private
placement business. Public equity underwriting revenues decreased by $0.8 million, or 14.0%, from $5.6 million for the quarter ended June 30,
2007 to $4.8 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2008. We executed nine public equity underwriting transactions in the quarter ended June 30,
2008 compared to eleven in the quarter ended June 30, 2007 due to a slowdown in underwriting activity for follow-on offerings and [POs. We
acted as a lead manager in none and three, respectively. Generally we receive higher fees for transactions in which we act as a lead manager.
However, average revenues per public equity underwriting transaction increased by 5.1% due to increased average deal size. Our strategic
advisory revenues decreased $2.0 million, or 43.3%, from $4.7 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to $2.7 million for the quarter ended
June 30, 2008, due to fewer transactions executed, at lower average revenues per transaction, in the second quarter of 2008 compared to the
second quarter of 2007. Private placement revenues increased $1.6 million, or 90.0%, from $1.8 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to
$3.4 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2008. While the number of private placement transactions executed decreased from five in the
quarter ended June 30, 2007 to three in the quarter ended June 30, 2008, revenues per transaction increased 216.7%.

Brokerage Revenues

Brokerage revenues increased by $0.3 million, or 3.5%, from $8.4 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to $8.7 million for the quarter
ended June 30, 2008. The increase was the result of higher gross commission revenue as well as a decrease in trading losses for the quarter
ended June 30, 2008 compared to the quarter ended June 30, 2007. The increase in commissions resulted from increased trading activity with
existing clients, and the addition of new institutional clients during the period. Brokerage revenues increased as a percentage of total revenues,
from 36.4% for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to 40.3% for the quarter ended June 30, 2008.

Asset Management Fees

Asset management fees increased $0.4 million, or 49.4%, from $0.9 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to $1.3 million for the quarter
ended June 30, 2008. Asset management fees include both base management fees and incentive fees for our funds under management. An
increase in base management fees from the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to the quarter ended June 30, 2008 was partially offset by a decrease in
incentive fees. The increase in base management fees is the result of an increase in assets under management from $238.4 million as of June 30,
2007 to $397.6 million as of June 30, 2008. The decrease in incentive fees is due to the decreased performance of our families of funds. As a
percentage of total revenues, asset management fees increased from 3.9% for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to 6.2% for the same period in
2008.

Principal Transactions

Table of Contents 53



Edgar Filing: JMP Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

Principal transaction revenues decreased $1.1 million from a gain of $0.4 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to a loss of $0.7 million for
the quarter ended June 30, 2008. The decrease was primarily due to a loss of $1.3 million from investment partnerships in the second quarter of
2008 compared to a gain of $0.4 million for the second quarter of 2007 attributable to the performance of the funds managed by us in which we
invest a portion of our capital. The $1.7 million decrease was partially offset by a $0.4 million increase in gains from our equity security
investments related to our convertible preferred security and equity security investments in NYMT and an increase of $0.2 million in gains
related to the value of warrants and an investment in a private fund managed by third parties.

Interest, Dividends and Other Income

Interest, dividends and other income increased $0.1 million, or 6.0%, from $1.3 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to $1.4 million for
the same period in 2008. The increase was attributable to interest and dividend income, which increased from $1.2 million for the quarter ended
June 30, 2007 to $1.3 million for the same period in 2008, and was primarily due to the dividend earned from our investment in NYMT
convertible preferred securities, as well as from investing of proceeds from our initial public offering in short duration AAA rated securities.
Other income, primarily from revenue sharing arrangements with, and fees earned to raise capital for third-party investment partnerships or
funds, remained steady at $0.2 million in each quarter.
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Expenses
Compensation and Benefits

Compensation and benefits, which includes salaries, commissions and performance bonus compensation to our employees, decreased $3.5
million, or 20.1%, from $17.3 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to $13.8 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2008. The decrease
was due to no expense for vesting of stock options for the June 30, 2008 quarter compared to $3.4 million for the same quarter in 2007 primarily
as a result of accelerated vesting of stock options in connection with our initial public offering. In addition, there was a decrease of $1.3 million
in employee payroll and accrual for bonuses, which is primarily attributable to the application of our target compensation to revenue ratio used
for the accrual of bonuses as a result of decreased revenues in the quarter ended June 30, 2008, compared to the same quarter in 2007, partially
offset by an increase of $1.2 million in expense recognized for restricted stock units granted at and after the initial public offering. Of the total
compensation and benefits expense for the quarter ended June 30, 2008, $2.5 million is attributable to equity-based compensation expenses,
comprised of expense recognized for restricted stock units granted in connection with the initial public offering in May 2007 of $1.2 million, as
well as restricted stock units granted after the initial public offering in connection with annual bonuses and other awards of $1.3 million.
Compensation and benefits as a percentage of revenues decreased from 74.9% of total revenues for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to 64.0% for
the quarter ended June 30, 2008. Excluding expense from equity-based awards granted in connection with the initial public offering, as a
percentage of revenues, compensation and benefits increased from 55.6% of total revenues for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to 58.4% for the
same period in 2008.

Income Allocation and Accretion/(Dilution)

Income allocation and accretion/(dilution) decreased $114.4 million from $114.4 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to none for the
quarter ended June 30, 2008. Due to our Reorganization as a C-corporation in connection with our initial public offering on May 16, 2007,
periods after this date no longer reflect an expense for income allocation and accretion/(dilution).

Administration

Administration expenses increased $0.4 million, or 25.9%, from $1.7 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to $2.1 million for the quarter
ended June 30, 2008. The increase was primarily due to higher conference expenses in the second quarter 2008 compared to the same quarter in
2007, building operating expense true-ups, and, to a lesser extent, higher insurance and other expenses associated with being a public company
for the full quarter ended June 30, 2008, compared to half of the quarter ended June 30, 2007. Administration expense increased from 7.1% of
total revenues for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to 9.6% for the same period in 2008.

Brokerage, Clearing and Exchange Fees

Brokerage, clearing and exchange fees decreased $0.1 million, or 5.3%, from $1.2 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to $1.1 million for
the quarter ended June 30, 2008. The decrease was primarily due to a one-time credit from a trading services vendor of $0.1 million posted
during the quarter ended June 30, 2008. As a percentage of total revenues, our brokerage, clearing and exchange fees increased from 5.0% for
the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to 5.1% for the same period in 2008.

Interest and Dividend Expense

Interest and dividend expense decreased $0.1 million, or 57.2%, from $0.2 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to $0.1 million for the
quarter ended June 30, 2008. The decrease was primarily due to the discontinuation of interest payments to Redeemable Class A members, as a
result of the exchange into common stock at the time of the initial public offering. As a percentage of total revenues, interest and dividend
expense decreased from 1.0% for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to 0.5% for the same period in 2008.

Other Expenses

Other expenses were flat at $3.5 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 and for the quarter ended June 30, 2008. The quarter ended June 30,
2008 reflected a decrease of $0.1 million in professional fees due to the settlement and reversal of a previous accrual of expense for an
arbitration award. The second quarter of 2008 also reflects a $0.1 million increase in travel and entertainment expense, due to fewer investment
banking transaction reimbursements compared to the same period in 2007. As a percentage of total revenues, other expenses increased from
15.3% for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 to 16.0% for the same period in 2008.

Minority Interest
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Minority interest relates to the consolidation of JMPRT and two of our hedge funds, Harvest Consumer Partners and Harvest Technology
Partners, as well as Opportunity Acquisition Corp. We recorded a reduction to net income of $211 thousand for minority interest for the quarter
ended June 30, 2008 compared to a reduction to net loss of $42 thousand for minority interest for the quarter ended June 30, 2007, due to an
aggregate improvement in the performance of our minority interest entities for the quarter ended June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in
2007.

Provision for Income Taxes

Prior to the completion of our initial public offering on May 16, 2007, we were a limited liability company treated as a partnership for income
tax purposes; therefore, all of our income and losses were reportable by the individual members. The U.S. federal and state income taxes payable
by the members based upon their share of our net income have not been reflected in the accompanying financial statements for the periods prior
to the Reorganization. We were, however, subject to state and local unincorporated tax and franchise tax.

In connection with our initial public offering and Reorganization, we are subject to federal and state income taxes on all taxable income earned
subsequent to May 15, 2007. Additionally, in connection with the Reorganization, we recognized a one-time tax benefit of $4.0 million in
connection with the establishment of net deferred tax asset items of $10.2 million. In calculating the one-time tax benefit amount and associated
deferred tax asset items, the Company made reasonable estimates of its share of the 2006 taxable income and 2007 taxable income attributed to
the period from January 1 through May 15, 2007 of the partnerships in which
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it had a direct or indirect interest. These estimates may change as additional information becomes available; as a result, the net one-time tax
benefit amount may change. For the three months ended June 30, 2008 and for the period May 16, 2007 to June 30, 2007, we recorded a total tax
expense of $0.6 million and a tax benefit of $5.3 million, respectively. Excluding the tax benefit adjustment of $0 and $4.3 million, we recorded
a tax expense of $0.6 million and a tax benefit of $1.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and for the period May 16, 2007 to

June 30, 2007, respectively.

The effective tax rate for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and for the period May 16, 2007 to June 30, 2007 was 76.9% and 207.5%,
respectively, including the prior year one-time tax benefit adjustment. Excluding the prior year one-time tax benefit adjustment, the effective tax
for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and for the period May 16, 2007 to June 30, 2007 was 76.8% and 39.7%, respectively.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2008, Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
Overview

Total revenues decreased $3.7 million, or 8.1%, from $45.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $41.4 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2008. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in investment banking revenue of $4.6 million and principal transactions
revenue of $2.4 million, partially offset by an increase in asset management fee revenue of $2.3 million, brokerage revenue of $0.2 million and
interest, dividends and other income of $1.3 million.

Total expenses decreased by $119.4 million, or 75.0%, from $159.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $39.9 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2008, primarily due to a decrease in income allocation and accretion/(dilution) expense of $117.4 million resulting from
a one-time non-cash expense associated with the exchange of Redeemable Class A member interests into shares of our common stock in
connection with the Reorganization at the time of our initial public offering and a decrease in compensation and benefits of $3.7 million.

Net loss decreased $109.8 million from a loss of $108.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to net income of $0.9 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2008, primarily as a result of the of the aforementioned decrease in expenses.

Revenues
Investment Banking

Investment banking revenues decreased $4.6 million, or 19.5%, from $23.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $18.9 million for
the same period in 2008 and decreased as a percentage of total revenues from 52.2% to 45.8%, respectively. The decrease in revenues reflects a
lower level of activity in our public equity underwriting and strategic advisory businesses, partially offset by an increase in our private
placement business. Public equity underwriting revenues decreased by $1.7 million, or 18.9%, from $9.0 million for the six months ended

June 30, 2007 to $7.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008. We executed 13 public equity underwriting transactions in the six months
ended June 30, 2008 compared to 17 in the six months ended June 30, 2007 due to a slowdown in underwriting activity for follow-on offerings
and IPOs. In addition, we acted as the lead manager on three public equity underwriting transactions, including our own initial public offering, in
the six month period ending June 30, 2007 compared to none in the same period in 2008. However, we recognized no revenue for acting as
underwriter in our own initial public offering and the underwriting fees were instead recorded as additional paid-in capital. Our strategic
advisory revenues decreased $3.5 million, or 43.1%, from $8.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $4.7 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2008, due to a decrease in the number of and average revenues per transaction executed in the first six months of 2008 compared
to the first six months of 2007. Private placement revenues increased $0.6 million, or 10.2%, from $6.4 million for the six months ended

June 30, 2007 to $7.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008. While the number of private placement transactions executed decreased
from eleven in the six months ended June 30, 2007 to five in the six months ended June 30, 2008, average revenues per transaction increased
142.4%.

Brokerage Revenues

Brokerage revenues decreased by $0.2 million, or 1.2%, from $17.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $16.9 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2008. The decrease was a result of higher trading losses for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the six
months ended June 30, 2007, partially offset by an in increase commission revenue. The increase in commissions resulted from increased trading
activity with existing clients, and to the addition of new institutional clients during the period. The higher trading losses resulted from
significantly higher market volatility in the first half of 2008, as well as increased market making activities. Brokerage revenues increased as a
percentage of total revenues, from 37.9% for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to 40.8% for the six months ended June 30, 2008.
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Asset Management Fees

Asset management fees increased by $2.3 million, or 129.0%, from $1.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $4.1 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2008. Asset management fees include both base management fees and incentive fees for our funds under
management. Base management fees and incentive fees both increased from the six months ended June 30, 2007 to the six months ended

June 30, 2008. The increase in base management fees is the result of an increase in assets under management from $238.4 million as of June 30,
2007 to $397.6 million as of June 30, 2008. The increase in incentive fees is the result of improved performance, mainly in the first quarter of
2008, of our families of funds, in particular of Harvest Small Cap Partners. As a percentage of total revenues, asset management fees increased
from 4.0% for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to 9.8% for the same period in 2008.

Principal Transactions

Principal transaction revenues decreased $2.4 million from a gain of $0.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to a loss of $2.1
million for the six months ended June 30, 2008. The decrease was primarily due to a loss of $2.8 million from investments in equity and other
securities related to our convertible preferred security and equity security investments in NYMT for the six months ended June 30, 2008
compared to a loss of $0.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007. In addition, there was a $0.2 million decrease from investment
partnerships, attributable to the performance of the funds managed by us in which we invest a portion of our capital. The decrease was partially
offset by an increase of $0.2 million in gains related to the value of warrant positions.
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Interest, Dividends and Other Income

Interest, dividends and other income increased $1.3 million, or 54.4%, from $2.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $3.6 million
for the same period in 2008. The increase was primarily due to the dividend earned from our investment in NYMT convertible preferred
securities, as well as from investing of proceeds from our initial public offering in short duration AAA rated securities.

Expenses
Compensation and Benefits

Compensation and benefits, which includes salaries, commissions and performance bonus compensation to our employees and managing
directors, decreased $3.7 million, or 12.3%, from $30.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $26.4 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2008. The decrease was due to no expense for vesting of stock options for six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to $3.9 million for
the same period in 2007 and a decrease of $3.1 million in employee payroll and accrual for bonuses, which is primarily attributable to the
application of our target compensation to revenue ratio used for the accrual of bonuses to decreased revenues in the six months ended June 30,
2008, compared to the same period in 2007, partially offset by an increase of $3.3 million in expense recognized for restricted stock units
granted at and after the initial public offering. Of the total compensation and benefits expense for the six months ended June 30, 2008, $4.6
million is attributable to equity-based compensation expenses, comprised of $2.3 million in expense recognized for restricted stock units granted
in connection with the initial public offering and $2.3 million in expense recognized for restricted stock units granted after the initial public
offering. Compensation and benefits as a percentage of revenues decreased from 66.9% of total revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007
to 63.9% for the same period in 2008. Excluding expense from equity-based awards as a result of the initial public offering, as a percentage of
revenues compensation and benefits increased from 57.0% of total revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to 58.5% for the same
period in 2008.

Income Allocation and Accretion/(Dilution)

Income allocation and accretion/(dilution) decreased $117.4 million from $117.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to none for the
six months ended June 30, 2008. The decrease was due to our Reorganization as a C-corporation in connection with our initial public offering as
of May 16, 2007, future periods will no longer reflect this expense.

Administration

Administration expenses increased $0.7 million, or 26.5%, from $2.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $3.4 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2008. The increase was primarily due to higher expenses associated with being a public company, as well as higher
conferences expenses. Administration expense increased from 5.9% of total revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to 8.1% for the
same period in 2008.

Brokerage, Clearing and Exchange Fees

Brokerage, clearing and exchange fees increased $0.2 million, or 7.6%, from $2.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $2.5 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2008. The increase was primarily due to an increase in trading activity in our sales and trading business as
total shares traded increased 21.9% from the six months ended June 30, 2007 to the six months ended June 30, 2008. As a percentage of total
revenues, our brokerage, clearing and exchange fees increased from 5.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to 6.0% for the same period in
2008.

Interest and Dividend Expense

Interest and dividend expense decreased $0.4 million, or 57.2%, from $0.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $0.3 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2008. The decrease was primarily attributable to the discontinuation of interest payments to Redeemable Class A
members, due to the exchange into common stock at the time of the initial public offering. As a percentage of total revenues, interest and
dividend expense decreased from 1.6% for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to 0.8% for the same period in 2008.

Other Expenses
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Other expenses increased $1.3 million, or 22.3%, from $6.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to $7.3 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2008. The increase in other expenses was due primarily to a $0.9 million increase in professional fees, consisting primarily of
increased legal expenses, as well as audit and accounting expenses from being a public company. As a percentage of total revenues, our other
expenses increased from 13.2% for the six months ended June 30, 2007 to 17.6% for the same period in 2008.

Minority Interest

Minority interest relates to the consolidation of JMPRT and two of our hedge funds, Harvest Consumer Partners and Harvest Technology
Partners, as well as Opportunity Acquisition Corp. We recorded a reduction to net income of $155 thousand for minority interest for the six
months ended June 30, 2008, compared to an increase to net loss of $93 thousand for minority interest for the six months ended June 30, 2007,
due to an improvement in the aggregate performance of our minority interest entities for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the
same period in 2007.

Provision for Income Taxes

Prior to the completion of our initial public offering on May 16, 2007, we were a limited liability company treated as a partnership for income
tax purposes, therefore all of our income and losses were reportable by the individual members. The U.S. federal and state income taxes payable
by the members based upon their share of our net income have not been reflected in the accompanying financial statements for the periods prior
to the initial public offering. We were, however, subject to state and local unincorporated tax and franchise tax.
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In connection with our initial public offering and Reorganization, we are subject to federal and state income taxes on all taxable income earned
subsequent to May 15, 2007. Additionally, in connection with the Reorganization, we recognized a one-time tax benefit of $4.0 million in
connection with the establishment of net deferred tax asset items of $10.2 million. In calculating the one-time tax benefit amount and associated
deferred tax asset items, the Company makes reasonable estimates of its share of the 2006 taxable income and 2007 taxable income attributed to
the period from January 1 through May 15, 2007 of the partnerships in which it has a direct or indirect interest. These estimates may change as
additional information becomes available; as a result, the net one-time tax benefit amount may change. During the six months ended June 30,
2008, the Company adjusted the one-time tax benefit of $4.0 million by $0.3 million in additional tax benefit. For the six months ended June 30,
2008 and for the period May 16, 2007 to June 30, 2007, we recorded a total tax expense of $0.5 million and a total tax benefit $5.3 million,
respectively. Excluding the tax benefit adjustment of $0.3 million and $4.3 million, we recorded a tax expense of $0.8 million and a tax benefit
of $1.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and for the period May 16, 2007 to June 30, 2007, respectively.

The effective tax rate for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and for the period May 16, 2007 to June 30, 2007 was 59.1% and 39.7%,
respectively, excluding the prior year one-time tax benefit adjustment. Including the prior year one-time tax benefit adjustment, the effective tax
for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and for the period May 16, 2007 to June 30, 2007 was 35.8% and 207.5%, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

A condensed table of cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 is presented below. We have aggregated the Predecessor
period from January 1, 2007 through May 15, 2007 and the Successor period from May 16, 2007 through June 30, 2007, without further
adjustment, for purposes of comparison with the same periods in 2008. The supplemental aggregate disclosures and discussions are not in
accordance with, or an alternative for, generally accepted accounting principles.

Six Months ended June 30, 2007

January 1,
Six Months 2007 May 16, 2007 .
Ended through May 15, through June 30, Combined Change from
June 30, 2008 2007 2007 Predecessor/ 2007 to 2008
Successor Predecessor Successor Successor $ %

(in thousands)
Cash flows from operations $ (23462) $(29.821) $ 1,626 $ (28,195) $ 4,733 16.8%
Cash flows from investing activities (21,881) (509) (14,451) $ (14,960) (6,921) -46.3%
Cash flows from financing activities 711 8,020 58,601 $ 66,621 (65,910) N/A
Total cash flows $ (44,632) $(22,3100 $ 45,776 $ 23,466 $ (68,098) N/A

We have historically satisfied our capital and liquidity requirements primarily through member contributions from our managing directors and
outside investors, capital raised in our initial public offering in May 2007 and internally generated cash from operations. In 2008, most of our
operating cash flow is generated from our investment banking and brokerage revenues and is invested in cash and cash equivalents, marketable
securities or other investments, and partnerships for which JMPAM is the investment manager.

Our balance sheet is relatively liquid and unleveraged. We have a $30.0 million revolving note with City National Bank, which had a balance
outstanding of $4.5 million as of June 30, 2008. In July 2008, we drew down an additional $4.2 million from the revolving note to fund an
investment.
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As of June 30, 2008, we had net cash and investments of $96.2 million. This financial measure is a non-GAAP financial measure and is not
presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals, or GAAP. A reconciliation of our cash and cash equivalents to our net
cash and investments is set forth below:

June 30,
2008
Successor
Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,495
Add:
Restricted cash (proceeds from short sales on deposit) 9,301
Marketable securities owned, at fair value 23,742
Other investments 45,770
Subtract:
Marketable securities sold, but not yet purchased, at fair value 9,479)
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Accrued compensation (7,330)
Note payable (4,481)
Minority interest (15,833)
Net cash and investments $ 96,185

The Company has calculated its net cash and investments in order to demonstrate the strength and liquidity of the Company s balance sheet.
Management believes that net cash and investments, net of liabilities, is a useful measure of the Company s capacity to invest capital in new
assets and to withstand market conditions that could compromise its equity value.

JMP Securities, our wholly-owned subsidiary and a registered securities broker-dealer, is subject to the net capital requirements of the SEC s
Uniform Net Capital Rule. We use the basic method permitted by the Uniform Net Capital Rule to compute net capital, which generally requires
that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital shall not exceed 15 to 1. SEC regulations also provide that equity capital may not be
withdrawn or cash dividends paid if certain minimum net capital requirements are not met. JMP Securities had net capital of $38.2 million and
$51.3 million, which were $37.5 million and $50.6 million in excess of the required net capital of $0.7 million at June 30, 2008 and

December 31, 2007. JMP Securities ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital was 0.28 to 1 and 0.22 to 1 at June 30, 2008 and December 31,
2007, respectively.

The timing of bonus compensation payments to our employees may significantly affect our cash position and liquidity from period to period.
While our employees and managing directors are generally paid salaries semi-monthly during the year, bonus compensation payments, which
make up a larger portion of total compensation, are generally paid once a year. Bonus compensation payments for a given year are generally
paid in the first two months of the following year. In February 2008, we paid out $26.9 million of cash bonuses for 2007, excluding employer
payroll tax expense.

The Company intends to declare quarterly cash dividends on all outstanding shares of common stock. The Company does not plan to pay
dividends on unvested shares of restricted stock. On March 10, 2008, the Company s board of directors declared a cash dividend of $0.05 per
share of common stock for the fourth quarter of 2007 which was paid on April 11, 2008 to common shareholders of record on March 28, 2008.
In addition, on May 8, 2008, the Company s board of directors declared a cash dividend of $0.05 per share of common stock for the first quarter
of 2008 which was paid on June 13, 2008 to common shareholders of record on May 30, 2008.

On January 22, 2008, Opportunity Acquisition Corp. filed an S-1 registration statement with the SEC in connection with an initial public
offering of 15.0 million units. Each unit is expected to be offered at a price of $10.00 per unit and will consist of one share of common stock and
one warrant. Opportunity Acquisition Corp. is a special purpose acquisition corporation, or SPAC, formed for the purpose of acquiring one or
more businesses through a merger, capital stock exchange, stock purchase, asset acquisition, or other similar business combination. The
Company is the sponsor of the SPAC. The Company and certain individuals affiliated with the Company collectively own 4.3 million units of
Opportunity Acquisition Corp. In addition, the Company has agreed to purchase from Opportunity Acquisition Corp. warrants for an aggregate
purchase price of $4.0 million in a private placement to be completed immediately prior to the completion of the initial public offering, which
we anticipate to be in the third or fourth quarter of 2008 but may be delayed or withdrawn depending on market conditions and other factors.
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On January 18, 2008, the Company and certain affiliated entities completed the acquisition of 1.0 million shares of Series A Cumulative
Redeemable Convertible preferred stock of NYMT, a publicly traded real estate investment trust engaged in the investment management of
mortgage-backed securities and high credit quality residential adjustable rate mortgage loans, at a price per share of $20.00 for a total of $20.0
million. The investment was comprised of $5.0 million by JMP Group Inc., $5.0 million by certain funds managed by IMPAM, and $10.0
million from JMPRT. In addition, the Company entered into an advisory agreement between JMPAM and NYMT to manage certain non-agency
assets.

In February 2008, the Company purchased NYMT common stock for an aggregate amount of $4.5 million in a $60.0 million private investment
in public equity (PIPE) transaction executed by NYMT.

On March 10, 2008, the Company s board of directors authorized the buyback of an additional 2.0 million shares of our common stock during the
next eighteen months, depending on market conditions.

In the second quarter of 2008, the Company entered into $7.0 million in non-revolving credit notes on which $2.8 million in aggregate was
advanced in the quarter.

Subsequent to quarter end, on July 14, 2008, the Company made a $4.2 million investment in a private commercial mortgage originator in the
form of a note and warrants. To fund the investment, the Company drew down an additional $4.2 million on its revolving note with City
National Bank, which brought its borrowings under this revolving note to $8.7 million.
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Because of the nature of our investment banking and sales and trading businesses, liquidity is important to us. Accordingly, we regularly monitor
our liquidity position, including our cash and net capital positions. We believe that our available liquidity and current level of equity capital,
combined with the net proceeds to us from the initial public offering and funds anticipated to be provided by our operating activities, will be
adequate to meet our liquidity and regulatory capital requirements for the next twelve months.

Cash Flows for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2008

Cash decreased by $44.6 million during the six months ended June 30, 2008, primarily as a result of cash used in operating and investing
activities.

Our operating activities used $23.5 million of cash from the net income of $0.9 million, adjusted for the cash used in the change in operating
assets and liabilities of $25.7 million and non-cash revenue and expense items of $1.3 million. The decrease in operating assets and liabilities
was primarily due to the payout of $26.9 million in 2007 bonuses in February 2008.

Our investing activities used $21.9 million, which consisted mostly of $19.6 million of net purchases of other investments and the funding of
$2.8 million in loans receivable. During the first half of 2008, we invested $15.0 million in Series A Cumulative Redeemable Convertible
Preferred stock of NYMT, as well as $4.5 million in NYMT common stock as part of the $60 million PIPE transaction executed by NYMT on
February 18, 2008.

Our financing activities provided $0.7 million of cash primarily due to a draw down on our revolving note with City National Bank and capital
contributions from minority members in the first half of 2008, offset by our cash dividends paid to shareholders and our repurchases of our
common shares for treasury.

Cash Flows for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
Cash increased by $23.5 million during the six months ended June 30, 2007, primarily as a result of cash provided by financing activities.

Our operating activities used $28.2 million of cash from the combined net loss of $108.9 million, adjusted for the cash used in the change in
operating assets and liabilities of $31.7 million, and by $112.5 million provided by non-cash revenue and expense items. The decrease in
operating assets and liabilities was primarily due to the decrease of Redeemable Class A member interests in connection with our initial public
offering, as well as the payout of 2006 year-end bonuses in the first half of 2007.

Our investing activities used $15.0 million, which consisted mostly of $12.4 million of net purchases of other investments.
Our financing activities provided $66.6 million of cash primarily due to the net proceeds from our initial public offering.
Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations have not materially changed from those reported in our Annual Report on From 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had no material off-balance sheet arrangements as of June 30, 2008. However, as described below under Qualitative and Quantitative
Disclosures About Market Risk - Credit Risk, through indemnification provisions in our clearing agreements with our clearing broker, customer
activities may expose us to off-balance sheet credit risk, which we seek to mitigate through customer screening and collateral requirements.

Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may result from the change in value of a financial instrument due to fluctuations in its market price.
Market risk may be exacerbated in times of trading illiquidity when market participants refrain from transacting in normal quantities and/or at
normal bid-offer spreads. Our exposure to market risk is directly related to our role as a financial intermediary in customer trading and to our
market making and investment activities. Market risk is inherent in financial instruments.
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Even though we trade in equity securities as an active participant in both listed and OTC markets and we make markets in over two hundred
stocks, we typically maintain very few securities in inventory overnight to minimize market risk. In addition, we act as agent rather than
principal whenever we can and may use a variety of risk management techniques and hedging strategies in the ordinary course of our trading
business to manage our exposures. Historically, in connection with our principal investments in publicly-traded equity securities, we have
engaged in short sales of equity securities to offset the risk of purchasing other equity securities. In the future, we may utilize other hedging
strategies such as equity derivative trades, although we have not engaged in derivative transactions in the past.

In connection with our sales and trading business, management evaluates the amount of risk in specific trading activities and determines our
tolerance for such activities. Management monitors risks in its trading activities by establishing limits for the trading desk and reviewing daily
trading results, inventory aging, and securities concentrations. Typically, market conditions are evaluated and transaction details and securities
positions are reviewed. These activities seek to ensure that trading strategies are within acceptable risk tolerance parameters. Activities include
price verification procedures, position reconciliations and reviews of transaction bookings. We believe these procedures, which stress timely
communications between traders, trading management and senior management, are important elements of the risk management process.
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Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk represents the potential loss in value due to adverse changes in the level or volatility of equity prices. We are exposed to equity
price risk through our trading activities in both listed and OTC equity markets and security positions in our principal investment portfolio. We
attempt to reduce the risk of loss inherent in our inventory of equity securities by establishing position limits, monitoring inventory turnover and
entering into hedging transactions designed to mitigate our market risk profile.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk represents the potential loss from adverse changes in market interest rates. As we may hold U.S. Treasury securities and other
fixed income securities and may incur interest-sensitive liabilities from time to time, we are exposed to interest rate risk arising from changes in
the level and volatility of interest rates and in the shape of the yield curve.

Credit Risk

Our broker-dealer subsidiary places and executes customer orders. The orders are then settled by an unrelated clearing organization that
maintains custody of customers securities and provides financing to customers.

Through indemnification provisions in our agreement with our clearing organization, customer activities may expose us to off-balance-sheet
credit risk. We may be required to purchase or sell financial instruments at prevailing market prices in the event a customer fails to settle a trade
on its original terms or in the event cash and securities in customer margin accounts are not sufficient to fully cover customer obligations. We
seek to control the risks associated with brokerage services for our customers through customer screening and selection procedures as well as
through requirements that customers maintain margin collateral in compliance with governmental and self-regulatory organization regulations
and clearing organization policies.

Inflation Risk

Because our assets are generally liquid in nature, they are not significantly affected by inflation. However, the rate of inflation affects such
expenses as employee compensation and communications charges, which may not be readily recoverable in the prices of services we offer. To
the extent inflation results in rising interest rates and has other adverse effects on the securities markets, it may adversely affect our combined
financial condition and results of operations in certain businesses.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. We base our estimates and assumptions on historical experience and on
various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. The use of different estimates and assumptions could produce
materially different results. For example, if factors such as those described in Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K cause actual
events to differ from the assumptions we used in applying the accounting policies, our results of operations, financial condition and liquidity
could be adversely affected.

Our significant accounting policies are summarized in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report. On an
ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions, particularly as they relate to accounting policies that we believe are most important to
the presentation of our financial condition and results of operations. We regard an accounting estimate or assumption to be most important to the
presentation of our financial condition and results of operations where:

the nature of the estimate or assumption is material due to the level of subjectivity and judgment necessary to account for highly
uncertain matters or the susceptibility of such matters to change; and

The impact of the estimate or assumption on our financial condition or operating performance is material.
Using the foregoing criteria, we consider the following to be our critical accounting policies:
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company adopted SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements ( SFAS 157 ) as of January 1, 2008. This standard establishes a consistent
framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures with respect to fair
value measurements. SFAS 157 applies to all financial instruments that are being measured and reported on a fair value basis. This includes
those items currently reported in marketable securities owned, at fair value, other investments and marketable securities sold, not yet purchased,
at fair value on the consolidated statements of financial condition. SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. See Note 4 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements for a complete discussion of SFAS 157.

Substantially all of our financial instruments are recorded at fair value or amounts that approximate fair value. Marketable securities owned,
Other investments, including warrant positions and investments in partnerships in which JMPAM is the general partner, and Marketable
securities sold, but not yet purchased, are stated at fair value, with related changes in unrealized appreciation or depreciation reflected in the line
item Principal transactions in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Net Income.

Under SFAS 157, fair value our financial instruments is generally obtained from quoted market prices, broker or dealer price quotations, or
alternative pricing methodologies that we believe offer reasonable levels of price transparency. Management believes that the fair value of the
Receivable from clearing broker and investment banking fees receivable on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition approximate
their carrying value, because such instruments are short-term in nature, bear interest at current market rates, or are subject to frequent repricing.
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To the extent that certain financial instruments trade infrequently or are non-marketable securities and, therefore, do not have readily
determinable fair values, we estimate the fair value of these instruments using various pricing models and the information available to us that we
deem most relevant. Among the factors considered by us in determining the fair value of financial instruments are discounted anticipated cash
flows, the cost, terms and liquidity of the instrument, the financial condition, operating results and credit ratings of the issuer or underlying
company, the quoted market price of publicly traded securities with similar duration and yield, the Black-Scholes Options Valuation
methodology adjusted for active market and other considerations on a case-by-case basis and other factors generally pertinent to the valuation of
financial instruments.

Marketable securities owned and securities sold, but not yet purchased, consist of U.S. listed and OTC equity securities, as well as
quasi-government agency securities. Other investments consist principally of investments in private investment funds managed by us or our
affiliates, as well as cash paid for a subscription in a private investment fund. Such investments held by non-broker-dealer entities are accounted
for under the equity method based on the our share of the earnings (or losses) of the investee. The financial position and operating results of the
private investment funds are generally determined on an estimated fair value basis as set forth in the AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide:
Investment Companies. Generally, securities are valued (i) at their last published sale price if they are listed on an established exchange or (ii) if
last sales prices are not published, at the highest closing bid price (for securities held long ) and the lowest closing asked price (for short
positions) as recorded by the composite tape system or such principal exchange, as the case may be. Where the general partner determines that
market prices or quotations do not fairly represent the value of a security in the investment fund s portfolio (for example, if a security is a
restricted security of a class that is publicly traded) the general partner may assign a different value. The general partner will determine the
estimated fair value of any assets that are not publicly traded.

Also included in other investments are convertible preferred stock and common stock of NYMT, and warrants on public and private common
stock. The investment in NYMT convertible preferred stock is based on a fair value estimate using the Black-Scholes credit adjusted valuation
model on Bloomberg. The investment in NYMT common stock, which is not registered under the Securities Act, as amended, is discounted to
estimate fair value. The warrants on public and private common stock are generally received as a result of investment banking transactions and
are valued at estimated fair value as determined by management. Warrants owned are valued at the date of issuance and marked-to-market as
unrealized gains and losses until realized. Estimated fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes Options Valuation methodology adjusted
for active market and other considerations on a case-by-case basis.

The aforementioned fair value methods represent the Company s best estimate of exit price as defined by SFAS 157.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Including an Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 115 ( SFAS 159 ) as of January 1, 2008. SFAS 159 provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value. It requires entities to display the fair value of those assets and liabilities for which the company has chosen to
use fair value on the face of the balance sheet. The election to use the fair value option is available at specified election dates, such as when an
entity first recognizes a financial asset or financial liability or upon entering into a firm commitment. Subsequent changes in fair value must be
recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Net Income. Additionally, SFAS 159 allows for a one-time election for existing positions upon
adoption, with the transition adjustment recorded to beginning retained earnings.

We elected to apply the fair value option to the following financial assets:

Investment in NYMT convertible preferred stock; and
Investment in NYMT common stock
There was no adjustment recorded to retained earnings related to the adoption of SFAS 159.

Subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 159, we have elected to apply the fair value option to new positions. In certain cases, we may continue to
apply the equity method of accounting to those investments which are strategic in nature or are closely related to our principal business
activities, where we have a significant degree of involvement in the cash flows or operations of the investee.

Asset Management Investment Partnerships

Table of Contents 68



Edgar Filing: JMP Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

Investments in partnerships include our general partnership interests in investment partnerships. Such investments are held by our asset
management subsidiary and are accounted for under the equity method based on our proportionate share of the earnings (or losses) of the
investment partnership. In accordance with the AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide for investment companies, these interests are carried at
estimated fair value based on our capital accounts in the underlying partnerships. The net assets of the investment partnerships consist primarily
of investments in marketable and non-marketable securities. The underlying investments held by such partnerships are valued based on quoted
market prices or estimated fair value if there is no public market. Such estimates of fair value of the partnerships non-marketable investments are
ultimately determined by our affiliate in its capacity as general partner. Due to the inherent uncertainty of valuation, fair values of these
non-marketable investments may differ from the values that would have been used had a ready market existed for these investments, and the
differences could be material. Adjustments to carrying value are made, if required by GAAP, if there are third-party transactions evidencing a
change in value. Downward adjustments are also made, in the absence of third-party transactions, if the general partner determines that the
expected realizable value of the investment is less than the carrying value.

We earn base management fees from the investment partnerships that we manage generally based on the net assets of the underlying
partnerships. In addition, we are entitled to allocations of the appreciation and depreciation in the fair value of the underlying partnerships from
our general partnership interests in the partnerships. Such allocations are based on the terms of the respective partnership agreements.

We are also entitled to receive incentive fee allocations from the investment partnerships when the return exceeds certain threshold returns.
Incentive fees are recorded after the quarterly or annual investment performance period is complete and may vary depending on the terms of the
fee structure applicable to an investor.

Legal and Other Contingent Liabilities

We are involved in various pending and potential complaints, arbitrations, legal actions, investigations and proceedings related to our business
from time to time. Some of these matters involve claims for substantial amounts, including claims for punitive and other special damages. The
number of complaints, legal actions, investigations and regulatory proceedings against financial institutions like us has been increasing in recent
years. We have, after consultation with counsel and consideration of facts currently known by management, recorded estimated losses in
accordance with SFAS 5, Accounting for Contingencies, to the extent that a claim may result in a probable loss and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. The determination of these
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reserve amounts requires significant judgment on the part of management and our ultimate liabilities may be materially different. In making
these determinations, management considers many factors, including, but not limited to, the loss and damages sought by the plaintiff or
claimant, the basis and validity of the claim, the likelihood of successful defense against the claim, the cost of defending the claim and the
potential for, and magnitude of, damages or settlements from such pending and potential complaints, legal actions, arbitrations, investigations
and proceedings, and fines and penalties or orders from regulatory agencies.

If a potential adverse contingency should become probable or resolved for an amount in excess of the established reserves during any period, our
results of operations in that period and, in some cases, succeeding periods, could be adversely affected.

Income Taxes

The Successor, JMP Group Inc., accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes, ( SFAS 109 ). SFAS 109 requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon the temporary differences between the
financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce the deferred tax assets
when it is more likely than not that a portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Predecessor, JIMP Group LLC, was a
limited liability company and was treated as a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes. Therefore, the Predecessor was not subject
to federal and state income taxes, and accordingly, did not provide for the federal and state income taxes in the financial statements, but it was
liable for state and local unincorporated business tax or franchise tax.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109
( FIN 48 ), which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken, or expected to be taken on a tax return and provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting
in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company adopted FIN
48 on May 16, 2007, the date the Company became subject to federal and state income taxes. Its adoption did not have a material impact on the
Company s financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk are set forth under the caption Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer has evaluated our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and
procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports filed or submitted by us under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC s rules and forms, and
include controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in such reports is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
period covered by this report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in a number of judicial, regulatory and arbitration matters arising in connection with our business. The outcome of matters we
are involved in cannot be determined at this time, and the results cannot be predicted with certainty. There can be no assurance that these matters
will not have a material adverse effect on our results of operations in any future period and a significant judgment could have a material adverse
impact on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. We may in the future become involved in additional litigation in the
ordinary course of our business, including litigation that could be material to our business. However, we do not believe that we have any
material legal or regulatory proceedings currently pending or threatened against us.

In accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, we review the need for any loss contingency reserves and establish reserves
when, in the opinion of management, it is probable that a matter would result in liability and the amount of loss, if any, can be reasonably
estimated. Generally, with respect to matters we are involved in, in view of the inherent difficulty of predicting the outcome of these matters,
particularly in cases in which claimants seek substantial or indeterminate damages, it is not possible to determine whether a liability has been
incurred or to reasonably estimate the ultimate or minimum amount of that liability until the case is close to resolution, in which case no reserve
is established until that time.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

The risk factors included in our December 31, 2007 annual report on Form 10-K continue to apply to us, and describe risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from the results expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly
Report. There have not been any material changes from the risk factors previously described in our December 31, 2007 annual report on Form
10-K.

ITEM 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

The table below sets forth the information with respect to purchases made by or on behalf of JMP Group Inc. or any affiliated purchaser (as
defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), of our common stock during the quarter ended June 30, 2008.

Total Number of
Shares Purchased Maximum Number of
Total Number Average Price as Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet Be
of Shares Paid Per Announced Plans or Purchased Under the
Period Purchased Share Programs Plans or Programs (1)
April 1, 2008 to April 30, 2008 95,900 $ 6.88 95,900 1,860,034
May 1, 2008 to May 31, 2008 113,100 $ 6.69 113,100 1,746,934
June 1, 2008 to June 30, 2008 74,700 $ 6.71 74,700 1,672,234
Total 283,700 $ 6.76 283,700

(1) On March 10, 2008, the Company s board of directors authorized the buyback of an additional 2.0 million shares during the subsequent
eighteen months, depending on market conditions.
ITEM 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.
ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

At our Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on June 9, 2008, our shareholders:
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1. elected seven directors to serve for terms expiring at our subsequent Annual Meeting of Shareholders; and

2. ratified the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to serve as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2008.
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Further information regarding these matters is set forth in our 2008 Annual Proxy Statement, filed with the SEC on April 25, 2008.

The table below shows the results of the shareholders voting:

Votes Votes Votes Withheld/
in Favor Against Abstentions

Election of Directors:
Joseph A. Jolson 14,256,820 2,425,777
Craig R. Johnson 14,199,720 2,482,877
Mark L. Lehmann 14,199,713 2,482,884
Carter D. Mack 14,113,018 2,569,579
Peter T. Paul 16,123,755 558,842
Edward J. Sebastian 16,123,805 558,792
Glenn H. Tongue 16,210,450 472,147
Ratification of independent registered public accounting firm 16,677,635 2,101 2,861

ITEM 5. Other Information
None.
ITEM 6. Exhibits

See Exhibit Index.

39

Table of Contents

Broker
Non-Voted

73



Edgar Filing: JMP Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

Table of Conten

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: August 7, 2008
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By: /s/ Joseph A. Jolson
Name: Joseph A. Jolson
Title:  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ Thomas B. Kilian
Name: Thomas B. Kilian
Title:  Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Description
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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